BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE
LIMITED

CIM: U72800KAZ01EBFTCI05343
NOTICE

NOTICE iz herehy giventhat the 6 Anmal General Meeting of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private
Limited (‘the Company™) will be held on Fnday, September 27, 2024 at 3:00 PLL (IST) at the
Fegstered Office of the Conmpany at Vaishnawi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey Mo 16/1
and 17/2, Ambalipura Village, Warthur Hobli, Bangalore — 560 103 to transact the foll owing business:

ORDINARY BITSINESS:

To consider and adopt

(a) the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the firancial year ended Warch 31,
2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, and

(b the audited consolidated firancial statement of the Compatyy for the financial yvear ended Iarch 31,
2024 and the report of Auditors thereon and, in this regard, to consider and 1fthought fit, to pass the
following resolutions as Ordinary Fesolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statement ofthe Company for the financal year
ended Iarch 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Ditectors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to
the hembers, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”™

“RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated firancial statement of the Company for the financal
vear ended Warch 31, 2024 and the report of Auditors thereon, as croulated to the Wlembers, heand are
heteby considered and adopted.”™

Regisiered Office: By order of ithe board

Yaishtiaw Tech Patle South Toweet, Billionhrains Garage Ventures Private L imited
3rd Floor, Survey Mo, 16/1 and 1772, A
Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobl, W e

Bangalore — 560 103

Harsh Jain

Director

Dated: September 04, 2024 DIN: 05321547

Add.: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor,

Place: Bangalore Survey No. 16/ and 17/2, Ambalipura Village,

Varthur Hobli, Bangabre — 560 103

Waishnawi Tech Fark, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
email: corp.secretarial @groww.in Tel:080-52501300



BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE
LIMITED

CIN: U/72900KA2018FTC109343

NOTES:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM") and may appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies in order to be
effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
Except in case of shorter notice which is for a period lesser than 48 hours, in such cases, the instrument

appointing proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company forthwith.

2. Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to submit the attendance slips which is annexed
hereto as Annexure II of the Notice, duly filled in for attending the meeting. Members holding shares in

physical form are requested to write their folio number in the attendance slip for attending the meeting.

3. Corporate Members are required to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of

the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and other relevant records in respect
of the ordinary business are available at the Registered Office of the Company for inspection of the members

during business hours between 10 am and 5 pm on all working days, except Saturdays and Sundays.

5. Route map and landmark details for the venue for the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company are

as below:

W

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
email: corp.secretarial@groww.in Tel:080-69601300



BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE
LIMITED

CIN: U72900KAZ018FTC109343
Annexure [

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

Name of the Company: Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Registered office: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2,
Ambalipura Village, Vartur Hobli, Bangalore, Karnataka — 560103

I/'We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
L. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:

or failing him

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:
or failing him

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 3:00 P.M. (IST) at the Registered
Office of the Company at Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2,
Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, Bangalore — 560 103 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

A. Ordinarv Business

Resolution Resolutions For Against
No.
1 To consider and adopt

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
email: corp.secretarial @groww.in Tel:080-69601300



BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE
LIMITED

CIN: U72900KAZ018FTC105343

{a) the audited standalone financial statement of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon; and

(b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and the report of Auditors thereon and, in this regard,
to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions

Signed this day of 2024
Affix
Signature of sharcholder Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the company.

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by

proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall

be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

4. The Form of proxy confers authority to demand or join in demanding a poll.

5. The submission by a member of this Form of proxy will not preclude such member from
attending in person and voting at the meeting.

e

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
email: corp.secretarial @groww.in Tel:080-69601300



BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE
LIMITED

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC105343
Annexure II
Attendance Slip
Sharcholder’s Name:

Registered Folio: No. of shares held
Address:

I/We hereby record my / our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the
Friday, September 27, 2024 at 3:00 P.M. (IST) at the Registered office of the Company at Vaishnavi
Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Survey No. 16/1 and 17/2, Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli,
Bangalore — 560 103

Signature of Sharcholder / Proxy*

*Strike out whichever is not applicable.

Note:

1. Please complete this slip and handover at the entrance of the Meeting hall.
2. Members are requested to bring their copies of this Notice to the meeting.
3. A member may vote either for or against each resolution.

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
email: corp.secretarial @groww.in Tel:080-69601300



BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343
BOARD’S REPORT
To,
The Members,

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (‘Company’)

Your directors have the pleasure of presenting the Sixth Annual Report together with Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

1. EINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars As at March *As at March | Asat March 31, | *As at March 31,
31, 2024 31, 2023 2024 2023

Revenue from Operations 193,473 90,562 295,809 127,732
Other Income 17,387 11,526 18,689 15,781
Total Revenue 210,860 102,088 314,498 143,513
Less: Total Expenses 171,524 59,374 241,710 93,129
Profit/ (Loss) before 39,336 42,714 72,788 50,384
Tax and exceptional
item
Exceptional item 133,968 - 133,968 -
Profit/ (Loss) before (94,632) 42,714 (61,180) 50,384
Tax
Add/(Less): Tax Expense 9,466 2,162 18,697 4,613
Profit/(Loss) after (104,098) 40,552 (79,877) 45,772
Taxes

* Previous year’s figures have been restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning
of the earliest period reported in the financial statements

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Company operates web and app-based technology platform ‘Groww’. It provides a tech platform for a
bouquet of financial products and services to its subsidiaries & group companies.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There has been no change in business during the year under review.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Board does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-2024.
5. RESERVES:

The Company has not transferred any amount to Statutory Reserves, for the financial year 2023-24.

Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka -560103
email: corp.secretarial@groww.in Tel:080-69601300



6. DETAILS REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT
VENTURE COMPANIES:

During the year, the Company has acquired 100% stake in Groww Creditserv Technology Private Limited
(“GCS”), hence with effect from March 21, 2024, GCS has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Also, during the year, the Company divested its entire shareholding in Groww AA Private Limited, hence with
effect from May 24, 2023, Groww AA Private Limited has seized to be subsidiary of the Company.

As on March 31, 2024, your Company has 8 (eight) subsidiaries viz; Groww Invest Tech Private Limited
(Formerly known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited), Groww Serv Private Limited, Neobillion Fintech
Private Limited, Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited, Groww Pay Services Private Limited, Finments Tech
Private Limited (Formerly known as Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited), Groww Creditserv
Technology Private Limited and Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited.

Further, Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formerly known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) holds
100% stake (including nominee) in Groww IFSC Private Limited, thus Groww IFSC Private Limited is a step-
down subsidiary company. During the year under review, Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formerly known
as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) has acquired 100% stake (including nominees) in Groww Asset
Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited) and Groww Trustee
Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited) and thus Groww Asset Management Limited
(Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited) and Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly
known as Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited) have also become step-down subsidiary company.

On August 22, 2024, your company acquired a 100% stake, including nominee shares, in Groww Asset
Management Limited (formerly Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited) and Groww Trustee Limited
(formerly Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited). As a result, Groww Asset Management Limited and Groww
Trustee Limited have become wholly owned subsidiaries effective from that date.

The Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture Company.

Pursuant to Rule 8(1) of the Companies Accounts Rules, 2014, a separate section reporting on highlights of
performance and its contribution to overall performance of the Company is disclosed in Annexure I.

Pursuant to the first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, a statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiary or
subsidiaries, associate company or companies and joint venture or ventures are attached herewith in Annexure
Ilin Form No. AOC 1

7. HOLDING COMPANY:

As per Section 230 to 232 read with Section 234 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions,
read with National Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016 and Companies (Compromise, Arrangement, and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and enabling provisions in the Company's Memorandum and Articles of
Association vide order dated March 28, 2024, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Bangalore
Bench has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation ("the Scheme™) for amalgamation of Groww Inc, USA,
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("Transferor Company") with and into Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (“the Company") or
("Transferee Company"). The Scheme was made effective from March 29, 2024. Pursuant to this Groww Inc.,
USA ceased to be the Holding company of the Company effective from March 29, 2024.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 234 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other
applicable provisions, read with National Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016 and Companies (Compromise,
Arrangement, and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and enabling provisions in the Company's Memorandum and
Articles of Association vide order dated March 28, 2024, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
Bangalore Bench has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme") for amalgamation of Groww Inc,
USA, ("Transferor Company") with and into Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited ("the Company")
or ("Transferee Company"). The Scheme was made effective from March 29, 2024, and for further details w.r.t.
to accounting, consideration, carrying value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date,
etc., request you to refer to note no. 30 of the Standalone financial of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2024.

9. SHARE CAPITAL.:

During the year under review, your Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from 75,00,00,000
(Rupees Seventy-Five Crores Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs. 150,00,10,000
(Rupees One Hundred Crore Fifty Crore Ten Thousand Only) divided into 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crore and Fifty
Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only), 1,000 (One Thousand) Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each and 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crore and Fifty Lakh) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten Only).

Post completion of the financial year, the following corporate action were taken place:

(i) Pursuant to approval by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Bangalore Bench, dated March
28, 2024, the equity shares of the Company held by its Holding Company - Groww Inc, USA stands
cancelled, and the Board of Directors of the Company has approved the allotment of share capital to the
shareholders of Groww Inc vide resolution dated May 09, 2024. As on March 31, 2024, pending issuance,
the issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital of your Company stood at Rs. 64,92,30,130/- (Rupees
Sixty-Four Crore Ninety-Two Lakhs Thirty Thousand One Hundred and Thirty only), comprising of
2,07,32,150 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, 880 Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 4,41,89,983
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Class A Equity Shareholders carries such voting rights such that
all Class A Equity Shares, shall in aggregate, entitle the holders of all Class A Equity Shares, to voting
rights (rounded down to the nearest whole number) equal to 81% (eighty one percent) of all issued and
outstanding Equity Shares, Class A Equity Shares and cumulative compulsory preference shares, on an as-
if converted basis. The aggregate voting rights of all Class A Equity Shares held by a holder of Class A
Equity Shares shall automatically, without any further action, stand reduced to O (zero) votes, such that the
relevant Class A Equity Shares shall not have any voting rights, immediately upon the earlier of, (a) the
date of Transfer of any Class A Equity Shares to any Person by a holder of Class A Equity Shares; (b) the
date on which such holder of Class A Equity Shares ceases providing services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries as an officer, Director or employee; or (c) the date of death or permanent incapacity of any
individual registered as a holder of Class A Equity Shares.



(i) The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is increased to Rs. 12,00,00,00,000 (Rupees One Thousand
Two Hundred Crores Only) divided into 112,49,75,000 (One Hundred Twelve Crores Forty-Nine Lakhs
Seventy-Five Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each, 25,000 (Twenty-Five
Thousand) Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each; and 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crores
Fifty Lakhs) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

(iii) The Board at its Meeting held on July 31, 2024, and Shareholders at its meeting held on August 09, 2024,
approved the issuance of Bonus Shares to its Equity and Class A Equity Shareholders (“Equity
Shareholder”) in the ratio of 14:1 i.e. 14 equity shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each for every one
equity share of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each, to its Equity and Class A Equity shareholders as on August
08, 2024 (“Record Date”). Accordingly, the Board vide its resolution dated August 21, 2024, approved
the allotment of 29,02,50,100 (Twenty Nine Crore Two Lakhs Fifty Thousand and One Hundred) Equity
shares and 12,320 (Twelve Thousand Three Hundred and Twenty) Class A Equity shares to its Equity
Shareholders as on Record Date. Pursuant to this, the paid-up share capital of the Company is
31,09,82,250 (Thirty One Crore Nine Lakh Eighty Two Thousand Two Hundred Fifty) Equity Shares of
Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each, 13,200 (Thirteen Thousand Two Hundred) Class A Equity Shares of Rs.
10 (Rupees Ten Only) each and 66,28,49,745 (Sixty Six Crore Twenty Eight Lakh Forty Nine Thousand
Seven Hundred Forty Five) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only).

During the year under review, the Company has neither issued shares with differential voting rights nor sweat
equity. Further, the Company has not bought back any of its securities.

10. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

Mr. Ishan Bansal (DIN: 06538822) and Mr. Neeraj Singh (DIN: 07701992) who were appointed as Additional
Directors w.e.f. March 27, 2023, were re-appointment as Directors of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on September 25, 2023.

The status of the Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013 relating to Key Managerial Personnel are not applicable to the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 8A of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed Mr. Roshan Dave as a Whole-Time Company Secretary w.e.f. May 02, 2023.

Post completion of financial year under review, Mr. Ashish Agrawal (DIN: 03295209) was appointed as
Additional Director with effect from May 09, 2024, and re-appointed as Director at the Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting on July 05, 2024. Mr. Gaurang Shah (DIN: 00016660) was appointed as Additional, Independent
Director with effect from June 07, 2024, and re-appointed as Independent Director at the Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting on July 05, 2024, for a term of 3 (three) consecutive years with effect from June 07, 2024, to June 06,
2027.

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD:

During the financial year under review, the Company had 14 (Fourteen) Board meetings, on 04.04.2023,
12.04.2023, 21.04.2023, 02.05.2023, 24.05.2023, 13.07.2023, 14.09.2023, 20.10.2023, 08.11.2023, 11.12.2023,
18.01.2024, 28.02.2024, 21.03.2024 and 28.03.2024




12. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT:

The shareholders of the Company in their Annual General meeting held on September 25, 2023, approved the
appointment of M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (101248W/W-100022), as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company for the term of five years from the Financial Year i.e., until the conclusion of the 9" Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2028.

The statutory auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as auditors of the Company.

The comments by the auditors in their report read along with information and explanation given in notes to
accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for further explanation.

13. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED / UNPAID AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company did not have any funds as contemplated under Section 125 of the Act lying unpaid or unclaimed
for a period of seven years. Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

14.  INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS:

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013.

15. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up and trained to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The company conducts
regular refreshers trainings for all employees and new joiners in compliance with the Act. There was no case
reported under the Act during the financial year under review.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by coordinated
efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to
maximize the realization of opportunities. The Company has laid down a Risk Assessment and Minimization
Procedure. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of
a properly defined framework. The common risks inter alia are Competition, Business risk, Technology
obsolescence, Statutory compliance, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. These risks are assessed and
steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.



17. DETAILS ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

1. Conservation of energy

The operations of the Company, being technology services, require normal consumption of electricity. The
Company is taking every necessary step to reduce its consumption of energy.

2. Technology absorption

The Company is continuously making efforts for induction of innovative technologies and techniques required
for the business activities.

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption: Nil

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
Nil

(iii) Technology imported: Nil

3. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the year is as follows:

Particulars Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
Foreign exchange earnings -
Foreign exchange Outgo 2708.91

18. DEPOSITS:

During the year under report, your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits pursuant to Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence, disclosures as required pursuant to Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are not applicable for the financial year under review.

19. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS OR GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The details of loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the year under review are disclosed under respective notes / schedules in the financial statements.

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and
were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made
by the company with related parties which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large.



The particulars of material contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached herewith in Annexure 111 in Form
No. AOC 2.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The brief outline of CSR Policy of the Company and other details about the CSR as per the Rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 have been appended as Annexure 1V attached
to this report. The Company has not constituted CSR Committee as the CSR liability of the Company is less
than Rs. 50 Lakhs as stated under Section 135 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013.

22. MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR/COURT:

During the year under review, there is no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

23. DISCLOSURE OF MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

24. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company complies with all the applicable Secretarial Standards, issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

25. FEINANCE AND SHARE CAPITAL.:

i. Issue of Equity Shares with Differential VVoting Rights:
The Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights during the year, and hence the
disclosure requirements in this connection will not apply to the Company.

ii. Issue of Sweat Equity Shares:
The Company has not issued sweat equity shares during the year, and hence the disclosure requirements in this
connection will not apply to the Company.

iii. Issue of Stock Options:
The Company has not issued employee stock options during the financial year under review.

26. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
Pursuant to the requirement of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

i. thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures.



ii. that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2024, and of the loss of the Company for the year ended
on March 31, 2024.

iii. that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv. that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v. that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

o INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal Financial Controls laid down by the Company is a systematic set of controls and procedures to ensure
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its
assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and
timely preparation of reliable financial information. Internal financial controls not only require the system to be
designed effectively but also to be tested for operating effectiveness periodically.

The Board is of the opinion that internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were tested
and reported adequate and operating effectively. The internal financial controls are commensurate with the size,
scale and complexity of operations.

27. APPLICATIONS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

There were no applications made by the Company or upon the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 during the year under review. There are no proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by / against the Company as on March 31, 2024.

28. THE DETAILS OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT, IF ANY

During the year under review, there were no settlements made by the Company for any loan / borrowing taken
from the Banks or Financial Institutions and hence no comment with regard to the details of difference between
amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from
the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof.

29. ANNUAL RETURN:

The Company shall place its Annual Return on the website i.e., www.groww.in of the Company as required
under Section 92 read with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 in due course of time.

30. DISCLOSURES:

The Company, being a Private Limited Company, is not required to comply with the clauses or provisions under
Companies Act, 2013 such as:

a) Appointment of Independent Director (Section 149).

b) Formation of Audit Committee (Section. 177).



¢) Formation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Section 178).

d) Undertaking formal Annual Evaluation of the Board and that of its Committees and the Individual
Director (Section 134).

e) Undertaking Secretarial Audit (Section 204).

f) Disclosure under section 197(12) with regard to managerial and employee remuneration

31. COMPLIANCES UNDER FEMA:

The Company has in place the system of ensuring compliance with applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and rules made thereunder and for certification from the Statutory Auditor of the
Company on an annual basis.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the Customers, Employees, Suppliers,
Professionals, and Bankers to the Company for their Cooperation and contribution in the affairs of the Company.

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

o %

LALIT KESHRE HARSH JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bangalore — 560103
Date: August 27, 2024



Annexure |

STATEMENT CONTAINING HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES
HASSOCIATE-COMPANIES/JOINTVENTURES

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary
l-Associate / IV
Groww Invest Tech Neobillion Billionblocks Groww Serv
Private Limited Fintech Private Finserv Private | Private Limited
Limited Limited
Share capital 663 100 50 424
Reserves & surplus 88,076 3,148 (11) (108)
Total assets 468,425 3,654 41 775
Total Liabilities 379,686 406 2 459
Investments 31,097 1,121 - 145
Turnover 291,041 2,296 0.74 2,450
Profit before taxation 39,829 (158) @ (148)
Provision for taxation 10,054 - - -
Profit after taxation 29,775 (158) @ (148)
Proposed Dividend - - - -
% of shareholding 99.99% 100% 100% 100%
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Name of the Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary
Subsidiary £
Associate LIV Groww Pay Groww Insurance Groww Creditserv Finments Tech
Private Broking Private Technology Private Private Limited
Limited Limited Limited
Share capital 800 125 25,216 405
Reserves & surplus 1,851 2 9,925 (1,279)
Total assets 3,339 124 76,338 62
Total Liabilities 688 1 41,196 937
Investments 2,668 - 1,019 1.6
Turnover 1,060 5 5,367 7
Profit before taxation (939) 3 (3,070) (1,230)
Provision for
. - 0.76 (661) -
taxation
Profit after taxation (939) 3 (2,409) (1,230)
Proposed Dividend - - - -
% of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100%
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of the Step-down Step-down Subsidiary Step-down
Subsidiary / Subsidiary Groww Asset Subsidiary
Associate- LV Groww IFSC Private Management Private Groww Trustee
Limited Limited Private Limited
Share capital 195 16,252 150
Reserves & surplus (2) 212 (109)
Total assets 195 18,004 72
Total Liabilities 2 1,540 32
Investments - 17,308 61
Turnover 8 1,159 4
Profit before taxation N (3,856) (89)
Provision for taxation - (78) -
Profit after taxation (1) (3,778) (89)
Proposed Dividend - - -
% of shareholding 100% 100% 100%

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

B

HARSH JAIN
DIRECTOR

Jshvt

LALIT KESHRE
DIRECTOR
DIN: 02483558

DIN: 05321547

Place: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bangalore — 560103

Date: August 27, 2024
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Form AOC-1

Annexure 11

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

SI. No. 1 2 3 4 5

Name of the subsidiary Groww Invest | Neobillion Billionblocks Groww  Serv | Groww Pay
Tech Private Fintech Private | Finserv Private | Private Services  Private
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited

The date since when the 18-03-2021 12-02-2020 27-06-2020 03-06-2021 26-10-2021

subsidiary was acquired

Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

subsidiary concerned, if

different from the holding

company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Exchange rate as on the last

date of the relevant financial

year in the case of foreign

subsidiary

Share capital 663 100 50 424 800

Reserves & surplus 88,076 3,148 (11) (108) 1,851

Total assets 468,425 3,654 41 775 3,339

Total Liabilities 379,686 406 2 459 688

Investments 31,097 1,121 - 145 2,668

Turnover 291,041 2,296 0.74 2,450 1,060

Profit before taxation 39,829 (158) D (148) (939)

Provision for taxation 10,054 - - - -

Profit after taxation 29,775 (158) D (148) (939)

Proposed Dividend - - - - -

% of shareholding 99.99% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl. No. 6 7 8 9

Name of the subsidiary Groww Insurance | Finments Tech | Groww Groww  IFSC
Broking Private | Private Creditserv Private Limited
Limited Limited Technology (Step-down

Private Limited | Subsidiary)

The date since when the 22-12-2023 29-11-2016 12-01-2024 02-08-2022

subsidiary was acquired

Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. 12-1-2024 to 31- N.A.

subsidiary concerned, if 3-2024

different from the holding

company’s reporting period

Reporting currency and - - - -

Exchange rate as on the last

date of the relevant financial

year in the case of foreign

subsidiary

Share capital 125 405 25,216 195

Reserves & surplus 2 (1,279) 9,925 2

Total assets 124 62 76,338 195

Total Liabilities 1 937 41,196 2

Investments - 1.6 1,019 -

Turnover 5 7 5,367 8

Profit before taxation 3 (1,230) (3,070) Q)

Provision for taxation 0.76 - (661) -

Profit after taxation 3 (1,230) (2,409) Q)

Proposed Dividend - - - -

% of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100%
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Sl. No.

10

11

Name of the subsidiary Groww Asset Groww Trustee Limited
Management Limited (Step-down Subsidiary)
(Step-down Subsidiary)

The date since when the subsidiary was acquired 02-05-2023 02-05-2023

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned,
if different from the holding company’s
reporting period

02-05-2023 to 31-3-2024

02-05-2023 to 31-03-2024

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiary

Share capital 16,252 150
Reserves & surplus 212 (109)
Total assets 18,004 72
Total Liabilities 1,540 32
Investments 17,308 61
Turnover 1,159 4
Profit before taxation (3,856) (89)
Provision for taxation (78) -
Profit after taxation (3,778) (89)
Proposed Dividend & -
% of shareholding 100% 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited, Groww
Insurance Broking Private Limited, Groww IFSC Private Limited, Finments Tech Private Limited

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: The entire shareholding in Groww AA
Private Limited was transferred on May 24, 2023.

Additional notes:

1. Groww Invest Tech Private Limited has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, w.e.f. August 16,
2024.

2. Groww Asset Management Limited and Groww Trustee Limited has become the wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, w.e.f. August 22, 2024,

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures: NOT APPLICABLE

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

o -

LALIT KESHRE HARSH JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bangalore — 560103
Date: August 27, 2024
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Annexure [T
Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
There were no related party transactions which are not at arm’s length.
Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
(Rs. in lakhs)

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of | Groww Invest Tech Private Limited
relationship

Subsidiary Company

(b)| Nature of contracts / arrangements /| Software, Server & Platform Charges
transactions
(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Continuous Ongoing Transactions
transactions
(d)| Salient terms of the contracts or | Ordinary Business Transaction at arm’s
arrangements or transactions including the | length

value, if any

Rs. 1,86,847
(e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board Not Applicable
(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

o 2z

LALIT KESHRE ARSH JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bangalore — 560103
Date: August 27, 2024



Annexure IV
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company intends to make a positive difference to society and contribute its share towards the social cause of betterment
of society. The "Corporate Social Responsibility Policy" (CSR Policy) of the Company is formulated for determining the
guidelines for contributing toward the sustainable development of the society and environment as a whole.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl Name of | Designation/ Number of Meetings of | Number of meetings of CSR
No. Director Nature of | CSR  Committee  held | Committee attended during
Directorship during the year the year
Not Applicable*

*Company is not required to constitute CSR Committee under Section 135(9) of Companies Act, 2013.

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

CSR Policy and CSR Projects are available on the Company’s website on Www.groww.in.

4, Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

The requirement of carrying out the Impact assessment of CSR projects in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the company.

(@) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs. 24,75,49,841/-

(b)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs. 49,50,997/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:
Not Applicable

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 49,50,997/-

(@ Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs.
36,78,541/-

(b)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b) +(c)]: Rs. 36,78,541/-
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() CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
Spent f_or the Unspent CSR Account as per | VIl aspersecond proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135.
Financial subsection (6) of section 135
Year.
(in Rs.) Amount Date of transfer | Name of the | Amount Date of transfer
Fund
36,78,541 12,72,456 18-04-2024 | Not Applicable NIL Not Applicable

(f)  Excess amount for set-off, if any:

SI. No. Particular Amount
(inRs.)
1) ) ©)
Q) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per NIL
sub-section (5) of section135
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] NIL
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
activities of the previous Financial Years, if any NIL
v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years
SN NIL
[(iii)-(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SI. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred to | Amount Deficie
No. | Financial transferredto | Amount  in | Spent in | a Fund as specified | remaining 1o | pey, if
Year(s) Unspent CSR | Unspent CSR | the under Schedule VII as | be any
Account Account Financial | Per second proviso to | gpent in
under under Year subsection  (5)  of | sycceeding
subsection subsection (6) | (in Rs) section 135, if any Financial
. of section 135 Years
(6) of section
135 (InRs.) (In Rs)
(InRs.)
Amount Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
1 2022-2023
2 2021-2022 Not Applicable
3 2020-2021
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

The company has not created or acquired Capital assets through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year.

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

Short Pin code of | Date of | Amount of | Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of the
particulars of | the Creation CSR registered owner

the property or | property or Amount

asset(s) asset(s) spent

[including '

complete

address and
location of the

property]
(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6)
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable
Not Applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property
as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
subsection (5) of section 135:

During financial year under review, the Company has spent Rs. 36,78,541. The unspent balance of Rs. 12,72,456 is towards various
ongoing projects and is transferred to the unspent CSR account and spent in accordance with the CSR Rules.

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

1 N

LALIT KESHRE HARSH JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Bangalore — 560103
Date: August 27, 2024

18




BB al Embassy Golf Links'Busjness’ Park
B' S R & CO_ LLP Pebble Beach, B Block,.3rd Floor
e ' ' No. 13/2, off Intermedfate Ring Road
Chartered Accountants Bengaliry.~ 560 071, India-

Telephone: +971-80 4682 3000.
Fax; +91 80 4682 3999

ndependent Auditors Report

To the'Members of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Report-on theAudit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We conducted our audlt in accerdance W|th the Standards on Audmng (SAS) epemfed under'
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibifitiss. under those. SAs are. further described in the Auditor's’
Responsibilities for the Audit-of the Standalohe ‘Firiancial Stateménis section of our report. We -are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics:isstied by the Institute of Chiartered

Accolintanits of [ndia togethér with the ethical requirements. that: are relevant to.our audit of the standaione

financial statemients. under the provisions of the Act and the Rulés théreunder, and we have fulfilled: our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements-and the Code' of Ethics. We beligve

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient-and appropriate to- provide:a basis:far our epmron

on'the standatene financial statements

express any. form of agsurance carcilsion thereen‘-” '

In cénnection: with-our- audit of the siandalcne finangial statéments, .our. respDHSIblllty isda read the other
information-and, i doing-so;- consider- whether the' other informatlon is: matenaily inconsistent with the
standalone fnanmal statements or our Knowledge obtained in the. audit ar otherwise appears to be
malerially ‘misstated. IF, based on the work we have performed, wé conclude that there is a material
misstatémerit of this other information, we are required-to. report that fact. We.hava nothing t6 report in
this regard

ctors’ Respbh’éibnities'

The Companys Management and Board of Directors aré responsibie for'thie matters sfited in Sectlon.
134(5) of the Act with respect {o the preparation of these standalone financial statemients that ¢ give afrue’
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit! loss &nd other comprehensive inceme, changes in- equny and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting printiples generally ‘accepted in- India,

Registered Office’

B85 R &Ca. {a pamni firem witk: Regi on No. BAB1223) dodverted Ma B S R &.Co. LLP (a 4 Finor, Central B Wing and Nerth & Wing: Nesco (T Park 4_Nesta
" Lircieed Liatiety Pannemhap with LLP Reistration o -AAE-3 181} vith eftéct fram omobarl-t 201! Ceritar, Wash prE nghway req n‘#aau Mumbal - 480063
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B'SR&Co, LLP

Mlsstatemenis can arisefrom fraud orerror and are cons:dered matena

Independent Auditor's Repért (Continued)

Bil |ibn_bra'i;h“sr:(:;‘;_arage:'-'vent_ufes_-P-r_i_vét'e Limited

at
1 mlsstatement when it exrsts_
ndwldually orinthe-aggregate;

they could reasonably be. expected fo influence the economic detisions. of users taken on the baets of
thése standalone financial statements,

As part-of.an auditin. accordgnce W|th SAs, wé exercise professional judgment dnd-maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit: We also:

ldentify.and‘assess the-risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial etatements ‘whether
dué to fraud or error, degign and perform audit proceduies: I'F..‘SPOI'ISI\.'E tothose rlsks ‘and obiam audit
evidence that is Sufficient and appropriate:fo prow'd' a. bams for dur bpinion. The nsk of: ot_detectmg
a matenal m:sstatement resultmg from fraud is higher than for one resu[hng from ‘BrrOT, A5 fraud may

e ofthe go:ng ‘coneern
) based on the audit

--ewdence obtamed whethera matenai uncertalnty EXIStS related to gvents er condmons that fnay. cast
“significaint: doubt on ‘the Company’s ahility to continug as a going concern; If we: conclude that a
‘material uncertainty .exists, we are tequired to-draw attentlon in our audit
“disclosures in the standalone finaneial stafements or; it such. disclesures are’ madequate 1o modify

s-reportito the: related.

our.opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the aidit ewdence obtamed Lpto the date: ofour auditor's
feport. However, future events or cendlt:one may cause the Company to ‘cease to continue asa.going,
CORCETN.

Evaluate the overall presentahnn struéture and Gontent of the staridalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statemants represent the underiylng
transactions and events in.a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those chiarged with governance regardmg, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit fi fndmgs including any significant defmenmes ininhternal controi

Page-2 of {1




BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report:(Continued)

Biliionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

that we identify during our audit.

We also:provide: those charged with governance with & statement that we have complied: with: relevant
ethlcal requafements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that. may reasonably be thought to bear on our mdependence and where applicable, related
safeguards.

1.

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report)-Order, 2020" {'the- Order’) issyed: by the Central-

Goyernment of. Indra _:n'_terms of Sectlon (1 1) of the Act We gwe m the "Annexure A" astaterhent

paragraph 2B(ﬂ below ‘on reportlng under Ruie 11(g) of the Compames (Audlt and. Audltors)'
Rules; 2014,

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and less {inciuding othér
comprehenswe income), the- standaicrie statement of changes in equity and the standaiorie
slatement of cash flows: dealt with by this Report are’in: agreement with the baoks of accoust.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone fihancial statéments comply with-the ind AS specified
under Section 133:0f the Act.

Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directars as on 3t March 2024taken
on record by the Board of Directors, rione: of the directors is disqualified as.on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in-terms of Section. 164(2) of the Act.

the ‘adverse remark relating to the. maintenance of accounts and -other matters. connected
therewnh are as stated m the paragraph ZA(b) abcve o reportlng under Sectlan 143(3)(b) and

Ré'port._m 'Anhexi.lré B

With-respect to the other matters fobe mcluded inthe AUditOl’S Repcrl in‘accordance with- Ritle 11 of
the Companies {Audrt and Audltors} Rules‘ 2014; in our opinion-and'to the best of-our information and
accord;ng to-the explanattons given to us;

a.

b.

The Company-does not have any-pending [tigations which would impact its financial position.

The-Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were-any material foreseeable losses.

There. were na amounts whith were. required to be transferred: to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the-Company.

d {i} The'-management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and befief, as disclosed in

the Note 32 to'the standalone financial statements, nio funds have been advanced or loaned or-
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources orkind of furids) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{‘Intermediaries”)., with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shail directly or'indirectly tend or invest in other persons of entities identified ih-any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the- Campany {*Uitimate Benefmanes”) ar provide any
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 32 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility that has been enabled in a phased manner starting from 1 April 2023 till 31 October 2023
and that audit trail was not enabled at the database level, to log any direct data changes. Except
for the period from 1 April 2023 to 30 October 2023, the audit trail facility has been operating
throughout the period for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

=y
oy B
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.; 222515
Date: 27 August 2024 ICAl UDIN:24222515BKFIOK3930
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to.the independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March.2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 -under ‘Report. on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our: report of even- date)

(i} (&) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particuiars, including quantitative.

)

(i) {b)

_ (c)
(@

(e}

iy (a)

b)

{iiiy.

@)

:advances in thé fiaturé -of ‘loans, secured or unsecured to compaﬁies

details arid situation:of Property, Plant afd Equipment..
The Company has maintained ‘proper recards.showing full particulars of intanigible dssets.

Accordlng to the. mfcrmatlon and-explanations given to us and-on the basis of our examination’
of the records of the Company, the:Company has:a regular programme. of physical verification
of: Its Property, Pilant and Eqmpment by which ait property, plant and: eqmpment are verifisd in

a phased mannerover.a pefiod-of 3years Inaccordance with this pragramme;:certain properly,
. piant and ;equipment, were:! versfed dunng fthe yadr. In ouf. cpm:on thxs penodlclty of physucal_

ver:ﬁcatlon is: reasonabl

Accordingto the mformatmn and exp!anat:ons giverrto us and-on the basis.of cur examiriation
oftherecords: ofthe Campany, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plantand Equipment -
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible. assets or both' during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us-andon the. basis of our examination

of the fecords of theé Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against. the
Company for holding any benami preperty under the Prohlbstlon of -Benami Propeity

Trarsactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a2 sérvice company, primarily rendering technology  platform
services. Accordlngly, it dogs not hold any physical inventories. Accordmgiy, clause 3(jij(a) of
the Order is not-applicable.

Accordlng to-the information.and: explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the. records ofthe Ccmpa y, the Company has notbeen sanctioned any worklng capital: Jimnits:

of the recbrds _'f the Company, lhe Company has not prc\ndedﬂa_ y
ﬁrms hmlted hab:llty
partnérship or’ any other parties during. the year The. Ccmpany has: made |nvestment5 in,

provided .guarantees and granted loais 1o companles in respect ‘of whlch 1he requisite

information is as balow. The Company has not made- any unvestments inor prowded guarantees-
or granted loans to firms, limited liability partnerskiip or any other- parties.

Based on the-audit procedures carried on by us and as per fhe information and: explarations
given to.us the Company has provided guarantees and granted loans. as-beiow:
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BSR&Co LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

(&)

(d)

(e}

®

Particulars. Guarantees | ‘Security Loans Advances in
(Rs. in lakhs) {Rs.in. hature of loans
lakhs)
Aggregate amount during
théyear - .
Subsidiaries* L - 191,539 .
Joiftventures* - - ~ -
| Associates* - = -

| othersr. 1 2400 - 1 42,500 :

'tstandmg 33".
e 5

Assomates* . : - - - -
Others* 2,400 - 32,500 -

"As perthe Companies Act, 2013

:According tothe information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

conducted by us;in our opinion the investments made, guarantées provided during-the:year and
the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and guarantees provided during the year are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and -explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the: Company, in the ¢ase of loans. given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stlpulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular éxcept-for the'loans of Rs. 772 Iakhs givento. Flnments Tech Private. Limited which.are
repayable-on denand, As informed to- us the Go pany has not: demanded repayment"_f_ the
Iean during thie- year. Thus there has be 'c.__defeulton the_ part fthe p _y:te hom the mcney

-Accerdlng to the |nfermat|en and explanatmns given te us and ort the'basis ofeur exammatleni
of the. records of the Company, there s no overdue amount for more than’ ninety days ini.respect
of loans given. Further, the Gompany has: not given any advances in the nature- of Ioans'to any
party durmg the year,

Accerdmg to-the information and explanations. given to.us.and on the: basis of our exarmination
of the récords of the Cempany there is no loan:or advance in the nature of loan granted falling’
due during the year which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to séttle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties,

According fo the information &nd explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination'
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any. loans -or
advances in the nature of loans to its Promoters and related parties as: defined in Clause {76)
of Sectiori 2 of the Companies Act, 2813 ("the Act’) or athef parties either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or periad of repayment- except for the following loans io refated
parties:.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Réport on the Standalone Financial
Statemernits of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private erlted for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (Contmued)

'Related Pajties
(Rs..in lakhs)

Aggregate of ldans .
>-on demand (A) 117,850

- Ag_{e_emen : '__s riot; spec;fy any terms ar pencd of- Repayment (B) “
Total (A+B) 417,850
;-Pe'.r.cen't_é;éj aof loans ta the totafloans _ : o _. 50%:

(v The Company hasnot accepted any deposnts oramourits; whrch are:deemed to be deposuts from
“the publlc Accerdmgiyt clause 3(v) of the Order is not: appfrcabie

(i) According to the information and explanations givén to;us, the Central Government has not.
prescribed the maintenance of cost records. under Section 148(1).of the Act for- the serviges.
provided by it: . Accordingly, clause: 3(vi) of the Order is not ‘applicabie.

(vii) (&) The Company. does not have liability in respect of Service-tax; Duty. of exdise, Salés tax-and
‘Valye added tax. dunng the year since. effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dugs has been
'subsumed into:GST.

Accordingto the. information and-explanations given to us-and on the: ‘basis of our: exammatlon
cf ihe records cf the Company, in _cur cplnlon amcunts deducted f accrued in the bccks of

-became payabie :

(b) Acccrdmg 1o the. nformation and explanatsons given to:us.and on: the basm cf our exarnmatlon
of the:records-of the'Company, theré are no statutory.dues relatmg fo Income-Tax, which have
not.been. depos;ted with the apprcpnate authcrrtles on acccunt of-any dispute. .

{viiiy According to.the information and expianations: given.10.us and on the basis-of our examination.
of the records of the Ccmpany, the Company’ has riot surrendered o disclosed: any transactlcns
prewcusly unrecorded as income in the:books. of account; in the tax assessments under the
Ingome Tax Act, 1961 as income durlng the year.

(ix). (a) According to the information and explanations givenvto us and on the basis of our examination

' of the records of the Ccmpany, the: Company did not have any loghs. or borrow;ngs from any’
lender dur:ng the year. Accordingly. clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b)  According to:the information and explanations given to us and ori the basis of our examination
‘of the records of the Company., the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
' Page 7 of 11




BSR&Co LLP

Annexure A to the independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (Contmued)

(C)

@

(&)

®

)

(xi) (&)’
(b)

(©)
(i)

{xiity

{xiv} (a)

(0)

(xv)

{xvi) {a)

{b)

Bank or financial institution or.government or governmant:authofity.

According to the infarmation and explanations gwen fo us: by the. management the Company
has niotobtained any térm Joans durihg the year. Acdording! y, Clatise. 3(|x)(c) of the Order'is not
epphcable

The Company has not raised funds on short term basis-which have been utilised for long term
PUIPOSES.

Accordlng to. the informatian and gxplanations givén to us and on-an ‘cverall examination of the:
standalone financial statements: of the Company ‘we report that the Company: hias not taken ahy’
funds from any entlty of person-on: account of or to meet the: obligatiohs-of its.sobsidiaries as:
defined: under the Act:

-Accordrng io the information and explanatiens given to-us-and on the basm of our examlnatlon

of the records of the’Comparty; the Company. has not made any preferentlal al]otment or private
piacement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordmgly, clause
3(x}){b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and récords of the ‘Company and accordirig 4o the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or.on the Company has
been-noticed of reported dufing the course of the-audit.

- According to the information and explanattons given to us, ne-report under sub-section ( 12) of
“Section. 143 of the At has been ﬂled by the audltors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule

13 of the Companies: {Audit and Aud:tors) Rules 2014 with the Centra! Government.

As represerited to us’ by the management, there are no whistle blower coimplaints réceivéd by

the-Company. dunng the year.

Accarding to the:informatio ____jnd explanafcons gwen to us, the Ccmpany is'nota Nidhl (‘.orn;:lanyr

! _S-the mformatlon and explanations gmen tous and an the bams of our exa_ ina
of records of the Company, transactions with the related: parties are-in comphance wuth Sectlen

188 of the:Act-where ‘applicable and. defails of such transactions have been dlsclesed in the.

standalong financial statemerits as required by the applicable’ accountmg standards

‘Based on information and explanations- provided to-us and_ our audat procedures, in bur uplmon,
thé Cempany has: an internal audit system commensurate with the size. and nature of its.
bu_s_m_es_s

We have considered the internal awidit reports of the Company issued fill date for the period
wnder audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us; the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactians with its directors of persons connected to its diréctors
and hence, provisions of Section 182 of the Act are nat applicabie to the Company.

The Company is not required to be régistered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly; clause 3(xw)(a) of the-Order § is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under- Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of india
Page 8.of 11




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

(b)

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 105,964 lakhs in the current financial year;
however, no cash loss was incurred in the previous year

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than
ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred the unspent amount to a Special
Account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with Section
135(6) of the said Act.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

"

Rohit Alexander
Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 August 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFIOK3930
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BSR&Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report-on the standalone financial
statements of Billionbrains Garage Veniures Private Limited for the. year
‘ended 31 March 2024

Report on the:internal financial controis with reference to the aforesaid standalofe
financial statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of thie Act

-(Referred to in. paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on: Other Legal and- Reguiatory
Requxrements’ section of ouir report of even date)-

The Company's Management and the-Board of Directors are responsible for establishing.and maintaining
internal financial cantrols based on the internal financial, controls with . reference: to financial statements
criteria established:by the’ Ccmpany considering the essential camponents of internal contral stated in the.
Guidance Note. These respansibilities include the. design, implementation and maintehance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effactively for ensuring the: c:rderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adheience to. company’s palicigs, the safeguarding of its: assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeéness of the: accounting: records and the
timely preparation of reliabie. fnanc;al information, as required under the Act.

. ‘and :
. ( hether adequate mternal ﬁnancual con ro1s W|th reference to financisl
statements Were establ:shed and maintained and if such controls operated. effectively in all- materiaf
res_pects

Qur audit :nvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the. adequacy of the infernal
financial controls. with reférénce to financial statements and: their. operating -efféctiveness. Our: audit of
internal financial contrals With refererice to financial statements included oplaining -an understandlng of
internal financial cantrois with reference to financial statéments, assessing the' risk that a material
weakness exists, and test:ng -and ‘evaluating the demgn and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The pracedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including-the:
assessment of the risks of matéfial misstatement of the standalong financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We befleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and- ‘appropriate to provide & basis for
our audit opinion on the Company s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Page 10 of 11




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101448W/W-100022

7.

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 August 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFIOK3930
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone balance sheet

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

2 . As at As at
e i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 3A 1,084 1,341
Right-of-use assets 4 1.771 2712
Intangible assets 3B 42 47
Financial assets
i, Investments 5 176,664 101,840
il Loans 9 36,959 -
1ii.  Other financial assets 10 3,072 11,077
Total non-current assets 219,592 117,017
Current assets
Financial assets
I Investments 6 45,119 76,650
i Trade receivables 7 68,842 29,335
ili. Cash and cash equivalents BA 7,055 15,818
iv. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8B 37.940 53,592
v. Loans 9 33,272 -
vi. Other financial assets 10 14,377 25816
Current tax asset (net) 23 6.080 1,093
Deferred tax assets (net) 23 3.568 -
Other current assets 11 1,133 1,141
Total current assets 217,386 203,435
Total assets 436,978 320,452
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders® funds
Share capital 12 6,492 6,485
Other equity 3 198,757 208.024
Total sharcholders' funds 205,249 304,509
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 13 11,029 387
Lease liabilities 4 802 1,834
Total non-current linbilities 11,831 2,221
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
Lease lLiabilities 4 1,228 1,017
Trade payables
1. Total owstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 52 -
ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 14 80,770 6,619
small enterprises
Provisions 15 35 41
Current tax liabilities (net) 30 133968 -
Other current Liabilities 16 3.825 6,045
Total current liabilities 219,898 13,722
Total liabilities 231,729 15,943
Total equity and liabilities 436,978 320,452
2

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
CIN: U72900KA2018FTC 109343 o

¥ e

fshd g

Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain Roshan Dive
Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. ; 222515 DIN: 2483558 DIN: 05321547 Membership No. A26472

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 27 August, 2024  Date: 27 August, 2024

Place: Bengalury
Date: 27 August, 2024

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 27 August, 2024




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particiibirs Notox For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from operations 17 193.473 90,562
Other income 18 17,387 11,526
Total income 210,860 102,088
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 19 106.173 25,727
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 20 1.806 1,177
Finance costs 21 268 194
Other expenses 22 63.277 32276
Total expenses 171,524 59,374
Profit before exceptional item and income tax 39,336 42,714
Exceptional item 30 133.968 -
Profit/(Loss) before income tax (94,632) 42,714
Tax expense
Current tax 23 13,037 2,162
Deferred tax 23 (3,571) -
Total tax expense 9,466 2,162
Profit/(Loss) for the year {104,098) 40,552
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined employee benelit plans 14 33
Income tax relating to ahove (4 =
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 10 33
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year (104,088) 40,585
Earnings per equity share in INR 27
(Face value: INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/- per share)
Basic : (10.69) 4.17
Diluted (10.69) 3.85
Material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
CIN: UT2900KA2018FTC109343

W &W

ohit Alexander Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain Roshan Dave
Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 2483558 DIN: 05321547 Membership No. A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 27 August. 2024 Date: 27 August, 2024 Date: 27 August, 2024 Date: 27 August, 2024




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in equity

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Share capital
Equity shares  Class A equity shares lnstru.rnc.nls sntinsty Total
equity in nature
As at 1 April 2022 2,066 - 4,419 6,485
Issue of equity shares - - - -
Issue of bonus shares (refer note 12 (e)) - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 2,066 - 4,419 6,485
[ssue of equity shares 7 - - 7
Issue of bonus shares - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 2,073 - 4,419 6,492
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Securities ; ! Share options Total
5 Retained earnings :
Premium outstanding account
Asat 1 April 2022 280,203 (36,503) 11,847 255,547
Profit for the year - 40,552 - 40,552
Other comprehensive income - 33 - 33
Changes during the year - - 1.892 1.892
As at 31 March 2023 280,203 4,082 13,739 298.024
Profit for the year - (104,098) - (104,098)
Other comprehensive income - 10 - 10
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 2493 - - 2,493
Changes during the year 2328 2.328
As at 31 March 2024 282,696 {100,006) 16,067 198,757

Material accounting policies (Refer note 2)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Jop BSR & Co.LLP
artered Accduntants
Flrm Registratpdn Number: 101248W/W-100022

g

'luhii Alexander
Yartner

Membership No. : 222515

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 27 August, 2024

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

W
Lalit Keshre

Director
DIN: 2483558

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 27 August. 2024

e

arsh Jain
Director
DIN: 05321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 27 August,

2024

s

Roshan Dave

Company Secretary

Membership No. A26472

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 27 August, 2024




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flows

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax 39,336 42,714
Adjustments: )

Interest income on term deposits (5.641) (7.158)
Interest on unwinding of commercial paper (3.105) (1.972)
Interest income on non convertible debentures (4.013) (1.105})
Interest on inter corporate deposit (3.187) -
Foreign exchange gain on cash and cash equivalent shown separately . (161) (722)
Net gain on fair value changes (1.1435) (301)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1.806 1.177
Share based payment 1.419 1.683
Provision for loss allowance - -
Reversal of provision for loss allowances (18) (13)
Interest income security deposit (35) (22)
Interest expense on lease liabilities 268 194
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 25,505 34,475
Change in operating assets and liabilitics

(Increase) in trade receivables (39.517) (8,502)
{Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (128) (1,019)
Decrease in other current assets 26 6.468
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 74,201 1,113
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities (2,220) 4,650
Increase in provisions 10,670 250
Cash generated from operations 68,537 37,435
Income taxes paid. net of refund (18,025) (2,332)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) 50,512 35,103
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment (441) (1,004)
Proceds from sale of property, plant and equipment 18 1
Purchase of intangible assets - (50)
Investment in subsidiaries and others (39,824) (18,160)
Investment in mutual fund (264,944) (119,342)
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund 265,365 131,618
Investment in commercial paper (41,629) (69,009)
Redemption of commercial paper 78,884 19.159
Investment in non convertible debentures (55,000) (40,500)
Redemption of non convertible debentures 15,000 3.000
Bank deposit placed (85.035) {118.368)
Redemption of bank deposits 122,305 179.014
Intercorporate deposit placed (234,039) -
Redemption of Intercorporate deposit 163,807 -
Interest received 14,864 8134
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (60,666) (25,507)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 2,500 -
Repayment of lease liabilities (1.002) (345)
Interest payment on lease liabilities (268) (194)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (C) 1,230 (539)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) (8,924)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 15.818

Cash and cash equivalents acquired on account of business combination =

Exchange difference on conversion of cash and cash equivalents 161

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear

7,055




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
s 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - =
Balances with banks in current accounts 7.053 15,818
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 84) 7,055 15,818

Notes:

i.Fl?e E:I:n)w: cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS-7) Statement
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Fifm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

k| Lo - Jp/

Rohit Alexander Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain Roshan Dave

Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 2483558 DIN: 05321547 Membership No, A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 27 August. 2024 Date: 27 August, 2024 Date: 27 August, 2024 Date: 27 August. 2024




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated as a private limited company on 9 January 2018 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the erstwhile holding company M/s. Groww Inc., Delaware, United States of America has
merged with the Company, pursuant to NCLT order dated 28 March 2024. (refer note 30 for further details)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is primarily engaged in carrying out the business of software designing, maintenance, testing and benchmarking.
designing. developing computer software and solutions, carry on the business of providing, building, organizing of software tools, marketing and innovatization of
licensed software. consultancy services. The company operates the weh & app based technology platform, “Groww™,

2. Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division [l of
Schedule IIT of the companies Act, as amended from time to time that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per
the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities, defined
benefit plan liabilities and share-based payments being measured at fair value.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/(Rs.). which is also its
tunctional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are being authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27 August 2024,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)
2. Material accounting policies (continued)
a4. Property, plant and equipment

i Recognition and measurement

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrving amount.

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property. plant and equipment is capitalized
only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets
outstanding at each reporting date are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and
installation is completed and assets are ready for its intended use.

Items of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable
value and are shown separately in the financial statements. if any.

it. Depreciation

Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis (changed from written down value basis followed in earlier financial
years) using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives specified in Schedule 11 of the Act.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Computers, laptops and peripherals 3 years
Furnitures & fixtures 10 years
Office equipments 3 years
Networking equipments 6 years

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date
of disposal. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and changes if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Improvements to leasehold premises are amortised over the lease term or useful lives of the assets, whichever is lower.
iii. De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected trom its use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition, disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised net, within “Other Income™ or “Other Expenses”, as the case maybe, in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year of derecognition, disposal or retirement.
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

b. Intangible assets

i. Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it
will flow to the Company. Intangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. Intangible assets acquired

separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The useful life
of these intangible assets is estimated at 10 years with zero residual value,

il. Amaortisation

Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and is included in the statement of profit and
loss.

¢. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and
supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs of accounting on accrual basis. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when

control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled i exchange
for those goods or services.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obl igations and
sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met,

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the
custoiner.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transterring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company
allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

(a) Income from tech platform services, support services and fees and commission income is recognised upon completion of services, in accordance with the terms of
contract,

(b} Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

(c) Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are treated as liabilities and adjusted against billing as per terms of the contract,
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(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
2. Material accounting policies (continued)

d. Financial instruments

i. Date of Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

it. [Tniticl Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities. with the exception of loans, debt securitics, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date. i.e. the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Recognised financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

iii. Classification and Subseq Measur t

A. Financial assets

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate, the Company classifies and measures
financial assets in the following categories :

a) Amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value through profit
or Joss (FVTPL):
« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows ("Asset held to collect contractual cash flows"): and
* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPL') on the principal
amount outstanding.
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in profit or loss,
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or
loss.
The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the assets, ('Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model') and contractual cash flows that are SPPL. are
subsequently measured at FVOCIL. Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (*OCI’), except
interest / dividend income which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of
debt instruments however, in case of equity instruments it will be directly transferred 1o reserves. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment
assessment.

¢) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or either
designated, are measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. The Company records investments in equity instruments and
mutual funds at FVTPL.
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)

B. Financial liabifities

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equity Instrument - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company is recagnised at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

(b) Financial Liabilities Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrving amounts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
determined based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is also
recognised in profit or loss. The Company does not have any financial liability which are measured at FVTPL.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. In order to show how fair values have been derived,
financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level I : Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has
access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of
the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 : Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

Based on the Company’s business model for managing the investments, the Company has classified its investments and securitics for trade at FVTPL. Investment in
subsidiaries 1s carried at deemed cost (previous GAAP carrying amount) as per Ind AS 27.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables, the carrying amount approximates the fair
value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iv. Reclussification:
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line or in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. Financial liabilities are not reclassified.

v, Derecognition:
(A) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) Is derecognised when:
* The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amount it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii} any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured at FVOCI).

(B) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially ditferent terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recogniscd at fair value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in profit or loss.

vi. Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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{All amounis are in INR Lakhs unless othenvise stated)
2. Material accounting policies (continued)
vit. Impairment of financial assets:

A. Trade receivables
The Company applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right from its initial recognition.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due, The expected loss rates
are based on average of historical loss rate adjusted to reflect current and available forward looking information affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

B. Other Financial Assets
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

e. Employee Benefits
& Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits include salaries and short-term bonus, A liability is recognised if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this

amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Company.

il. Gratuity
Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vest after five years of continuous service,

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that the employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior period. Such benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each

period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation,

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market
yields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

iii. Provident fund

The contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution pavable to the provident
fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)
iv. Share based payment arrangements

The cost of equity settled share-based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using option pricing model at
the date on which the options are granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions,

The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding change in share options outstanding account.
v.  Long term employee benefits

The long term employee benefits is measured by reference to the fair value of the benefits using generally accepted valuation methodologies which takes into
account performance based conditions subject to continuous service.

f. Borrowing costs

Expenses related to borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating
to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The ditference between the
discounted amount mobilised and redemption value of commercial papers is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the instrument using the
EIR.

g. Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of
revenue transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functicnal
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

h. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Company assess
whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified assets; (ii) the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the assets through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 month or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of
the lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-
of-use asscts.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. If that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate,

Lease liability has been included in borrowing and ROU asset has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)

i. Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
j- Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of embadying economic benetits
will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to effect current management estimates,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes forming part of financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in
the financial statements, Contingent liabilities are recognised when there is possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

k. Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity or in OCL

(i) Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax
comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it intends to realise
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty
of its realisation, supported by convincing evidence.

Deferred tax assets on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in
deferred tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities representing current tax and
where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)

I Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in current accounts, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cash and short-term deposits are considered integral part of the Company’s cash
management,

m.  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents includes fixed deposits with banks with original maturities of twelve months or less.
n. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.
An impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment
loss had previously been recognised.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available, If no such
transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used,

0. Segment reporting

The company prepares the consolidated financial statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108 on operating segments, the Company has not disclosed the segments
information in the standalone financial statements.

p. Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share. Basic earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit attributable to the
equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed
by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity share holders after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number
of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

q. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or
aceruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

q. Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method as at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the
Company. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. When the
Company acquires a business, it assess the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation. In accordance with contractual
terms. economic circumstances, and pertinent conditions as at acquisition date,

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.
If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
2. Material accounting policies (continued)
r. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future years.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
YIng gomg 2 g 3

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the following notes:

i) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may
change due to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in
the depreciation and amortisation charges.

(i) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds,
The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the
valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

(iii) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113. Being a critical estimate, Judgement is
exercised to determine the carrying values. The fair value of financial instruments that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined at fair values
assessed based on recent transactions entered into with third parties, based on valuation done by external appraisers etc., as applicable.

(iv) Expected credit losses on financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is “credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

(v) Deferred Tax

Deflrred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences could be utilized. Further details are disclosed in Note 22.

(vi) Provision and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and
circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

(vii) Share buased puyments
Estimating fair value for share based payment requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model. The estimate also requires determination of the most

appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend vield and making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share based payments transuctions are discussed in Note 28 "Share based payments”.
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)

(viii) Leases

In determining whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease, The arrangement is. or
contains, a lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even
if that right is not explicitly specified in the arrangement.

5. Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as

issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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4 Leases

=

b)

A contract is, or coptains. a lease if the contract conveys tie right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Crmprany as a fessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primanily consist of leases for premises and leasehold smprovements. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a Jease, at meeption of a
contract. To assess whether a contract conveys the nght to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the
Company has substantially all of the economic henefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements i which it 15 a lessee. except
for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases

For these short-term and low value leases. the Company recognizes the lease pavments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease The “ompany has not
recogntsed any short term leases,

Certam lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities meludes these aptions when it 15 teasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU are mitially recognized at cost, which comprises the imtial amount of the lease Tiability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straigli-line basis over the lease term,
The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments, The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the
company. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment on whether it will exercise an extension

ar a termination option,

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the year by class

Particulars Leasehold Property
Balance as on 1 April 2022 =
Additions 3,359
Deletions i
Depreciation (647)
Balance as on 31 March 2023 2712
Additions 181
Deletions i
Depreciation {1.122)
Balance as on 31 March 2024 1,771

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
Particulars it A

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
At the commencement of the vear 2.851 -
Additions 181 3,196
Accretion of interest 268 194
Payments (1,270) (539)
At the end of the vear 2,030 2,851
Current 1,228 1,017

Nan-Current 802 1,834
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b)

c

d)

Maturity analysis of lease labilities

Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted cash flows 1 M.::c::zul-l . i\I:::I:ZlTZJ
Less than one vear 1.386 1.275
One to five vears 831 i.985
Mare than five vears - -
Total undiscounted lease habilities 2817 3.260
Lease liabilities included as at the balance sheet date 2,030 2,851

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023 .

Interest on lease habilities

A recognised in the st of eash flows

268

194

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Total cash outflow for leases

1270

539
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5

Mon current investments

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Non current
Investment in Equity Shares of subsidiaries at

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited 56,489 56,889
[66.25461 (31 March 2023: 66.25,461) Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each]
Neobillion Fintech Private Limited 5,000 5,000
[99.86,057 (31 March 2023: 99,86,057) Equity shares of Re. 1/- each]
Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as Billionbrains Capital Private Limited) 823 823
[42.38.729 (31 March 2023: 42 38,729) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each]
Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited 230 200
[50.09.999 (31 March 2023: 20,09,999) Equity shares of Re. 1/- each]
Groww Pay Service Private Limited 4,002 3,002
[80,03,999 (31 March 2023: 60,03,999) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each]
Groww AA Private Limited - 230
[Nil (31 March 2023: 23,00,000 ) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each]
Groww Insurance Private Limited 125 125
[12,50,000 (31 March 2023: 12,50,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each]
Finments Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited) 426 26
40,50.000 (31 March 2023: 2,50.000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each]
Groww Creditserv Technology Private Limited 37.824 -
[1.35,82.985 (31 March 2023: Nil) Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each]
Investment in Equity Shares at fair value through Comprehensive Income:
Fourdegreewater Capital Private Limited 1 I
{1 (31 March 2023: 1) Equity share of Re. 10/- each]
Digiotech Solutions Private Limited 1,000 1,000
[1.834 (31 March 2023: 1,834) Equity shares of Re. 1/~ each]
Investment in Preference Shares at fair value through
Fourdegreewater Capital Private Limited 8O3 803
[627 (31 March 2023: 627) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs, 20/- each]
Digiotech Solutions Private Limited 9,300 9,500
[13,935 (31 March 2023: 13,935) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Re. 1/- each]
Hyperface Technologies Pte. Ltd. 1,039 1,039
(48,144 (31 March 2023: 48,144 Class A Preference Shares of USD 0.0001/- each)
Bigital Technologies Private Limited 700 700
[20.295 (31 March 2023: 20,295) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10/- each]
Ignosi Systems Private Limited 800 -
[2,301 {31 March 2023: Nil) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10/~ each]
Investment in non convertible debentures (quoted) at amortised cost- More than 12 months remaining maturity 57,500 22,500
Total 176,664 101,840
Current investment

As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 5,524 4,800
Investment in commercial papers (quoted)- Less than 12 months remaining maturity - 4,984
Measured at amortised cost - quoted

Investment in commercial papers (quoted)- Less than 12 months remaining maturity 19,593 51,866
Investment in non convertible debentures (quoted)- Less than 12 months remaining maturity 20,000 15,000
Taotal 45,119 76,650
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment » -
Aggregate amount of quoted investment 45119 76,650
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7

8A

8B

Trade reccivables

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered pood 68 842 29,325
Unsecured. considered doubtful - 2
Loss allowance
Unsecured. considered doubtful - i28)
Net trade receivables 68,842 29,325
Trade receivables ageing
Qutstanding as at 31 March 2024 for following periods from the date of transaction
Pakttoshees i o 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Tex
6 months 1 vear ¥ :
{1) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 48,358 - - - 48,358
{i1) Undisputed trade receivables — which have - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - -
(iii) Disputed trade receivables—considered good - » = * #
(1i1) Disputed trade receivables — which have - - - - =
significant increase in credit risk
{iv) Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired * = % - -
Less: Loss allowance =
Add: Unbilled revenue 20484
Total 68,842
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for following periods from the date of transaction
Raxticylnrs Less than o 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Ty
6 months 1 vear 2 .
(1) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 28,910 - - 28,910
(1) Undisputed trade receivables — which have - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(i1) Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired 28 < - - 28
(iii) Disputed trade receivables—considered good - - - -
(iii) Disputed trade receivables — which have — - & =
significant increase in credit risk
(iv) Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - -
Less: Loss allowance (28)
Add: Unbilled revenue 415
Total 29,325
Cash and cash equivalents
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash in hand - 5
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 7.055 15,818
Total 7,055 15,818
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bank deposits - Less than 12 months original maturity 17,940 43,592
Deposits with banks held against guarantee 10,000 -
Deposits with NBFC's - Less than 12 months original maturity 10,000 10.000
Total 37,940 53,592
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9

Loans

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Intercorporate deposit (refer note 28) 36,959 -
Total 36.959 -
Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Intercorporate deposit’ 33,272 -
Total 33,272 -
Other financial assets

As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Non-current
{Unsecured, considered good)

Rental and security deposits 589 543
Depaosits with NBFC's - having remaining maturity of more than 12 months - 10,000
Interest acerued on investments 2.483 534
Total 3,072 11,077
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current

(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits - having remaining maturity of less than 12 months 300 21,918
Deposits with NBFC's - having remaining maturity of less than 12 months 10,000 -
Receivable from related parties (refer note 28) 1,539 515
Interest accrued on investments 2,493 3,360
Advance to emplovees 43 23
Total 14,377 25816
Total other financial assets 17,449 36.893
Other assets
As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses 1,071 780
Advances to suppliers 59 361
Others 3 -
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Advances to suppliers 3 21
Less: Loss allowance (3) 20
Total 1,133 1,141
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Share capital

Asat 31 March 2024

Asat 31 March 2023

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Authorised share capital

Equity Shares

Equity Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023: INR 10/) 75.000,000 7.500 75.000.000 7.500
Class A Equity Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023; INR 10/-)* 1.000 - 1,000 -
Instraments entirely equity in nature

Preference Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023 INR 10/-)* 75 000,000 7.500 75.000.,000 7.500

150,001,000 15,000 150,001,000 15,000

* Pursnant to the merger order deted 28 March 2024, the board af directors has approved for the increase in anthorised share caprial vide resolution dated 29 March 2024, The
company hay fild the Form SH-"with the Mintstry of Corporate Affairs on 22 April 2024 for increase in authorised share capival.
i) ’ ¥ i T 1] e : f

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital (shares pendi

5

Eyuity Shares
Equity Shares of INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/-) 20.732.150 2473 20,659,898 2,066
Class A Equity Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023: INR 10/) R80 - 880 -
20,733,030 2,073 20,660,778 2,066
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Series A-1 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 10.446.6063 1,045 10,446,663 1.0435
INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 1(/-)
Series A-2 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 509.299 51 509.299 51
INR 10/- (31 March 2023; INR 10/-)
Series A-3 0.00001% Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares of 1.842.500 184 1.842.500 184
INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
Series A-4 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 2,653,200 265 2.653.200 265
INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
Series B 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 10,820,404 1.082 10,820,404 1,082
INR 10/ (31 March 2023: INR 10/}
Series C-1 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 6411,899 641 6,411,899 641
INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
Series C-2 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 542,340 54 542,340 54
INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/
Series D 0L00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 4.918,507 492 4,918,507 492
INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
Series E 0.00001% Compulsory Canvertible Preference Shares of 6,045,171 605 6,045,171 605
INR 10/- (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
44,189,983 4,419 44,189,983 4,419
64,923,013 6,492 64,850,761 6,485

* Pursuant to the merger order dated 28th March 2024, the equity sharex of the Company held by Groww Inc, USA stand cancelled. The Board af Direciors has approved for the
allotment of share capiral vide resolution dated 9 May 2024 which is disclosed as pending issuance as on 31 March 2024. The Company has filed the Form PAS-3 with the

ministry of corporate affairs on 29 Mey 2024 for the allviment of share capital. (Refer note 30)

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares*
At the commencement of the vear 20,659 898 2,066 20,659 898 2.066
Add : Issued during the year 72,252 7 - -
At the end of the vear 20,732,150 2,073 20,659,898 2,066

Asat 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
Class A equity shares*
At the commencement of the vear BEO - 8RO -
Add : Issued during the vear - - - -
At the end of the vear 880 - 880 -

Asat31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
Compulsory convertible preference shares
At the commencement of the vear 44,189,983 4419 44,189.983 4419
Add : Issued during the vear- - - - - -
At the end of the vear 44,189,983 4.419 44,159,983

* As on 27 March 2023 pursuant to Section 61 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has consolidated 10 equity shares of INR 1 each into 1 equity share of INR 10 each.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

FAN amananis e i AR Lokhs wnless otherwise suted)

(b) Termsirights attached to equity shares and preference shares

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

Equity shares are ranked equally with regard to dividend and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity sharehalders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time 1o+
time. The votmg rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company

On winding up of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company. remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in
proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Class A equity shares

The holders of the Class A Equity Shares shall have the same rights, privileges. limitations, and restrictions pari-passu with the holder of Equity Shares and shall enjoy all other rights
such as bonus shares. rights shares etc. which the holders of Equity Shares are entitled to subject to the voting rights.

Class A Equity Shareholders shall carry such voting rights such that all Class A Equity Shares, shall in aggregate, entitle the holders of all Class A Equity Shares. to voting rights
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) equal to 81% (eighty one percent) of all issued and outstanding Equity Shares, Class A Equity Shares and cumulative compulsory
preference shares. on an as-if converted basis.

The agpregate voting rights of all Class A Equity Shares held by a holder of Class A Equity Shares shall automatically, without any further action. stand reduced to 0 (zero) votes.
such that the relevant Class A Equity Shares shall not have any voting rights, immediately upon the earlier of. (a) the date of Transfer of any Class A Equity Shares to any Person by
a holder of Class A Equity Shares: (b) the date on which such holder of Class A Equity Shares ceases providing services 1o the C ompany or any of its subsidiaries as an officer,
Director or employee: or (¢) the date of death or penmanent incapacity of any individual registered as a holder of Class A Equity Shares.

Rights, preferences end restrictions attached to preference shares
Compulsorily convertible preference shares - Series A-1, A-2, A-3, A-4, B, C-1, C-2, D, E

Any Series A-| Preference Shares. Series A-2 Preference Shares, Series A-3 Preference Shares, Series A-4 Preference Shares. Series B Preference Shares. the Series C-1, Series C-2
Preference Shares. the Series D Preference Shares and the Series E Preference Shares (collectively referred to as “Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares™), issued 1o by the
Company. if not converted at any time prior to 20 (Twenty) years from the date of issuance of the same, shall automatically convert into Equity Shares on the (a) latest penmnissible
date prior to the issue of Shares to the public in connection with the occurrence of an Initial Public Offer (IPO) under Applicable Law: or (b} dav immediately preceding the
completion of 20 (Twenty) vears from the date of issuance of the same,

The Preference Shareholders of the Company for their action or consideration at any meeting of Shareholders of the Company, each holder of outstanding Preference Shares shall be
entitled to cast the number of voles equal to the number of Equity Shares into which the Preference Shares held by such holder are convertible as of the record date for determining
Shareholders entitled to vote on such matter.

Any of the rights, powers, preferences and other terms of a series of Preference Shares may be waived on behalf of all holders of such series of Preference Shares by the affirmative
written consent o1 vote of the holders of atleast a majority of shares of such series of Preference Shares then outstanding.

Each Preference Share is issued at a preferential dividend rate of 0.00001% (Zero point Zero Zero Zero Zero One percent) per annum. The Dividend is non-cumulative and shall not
acerue whether or not paid. The Dividend shall be due only when declared by the Board in compliance with Applicable Law.

The helders of the Preference Shares shall have conversion rights as follows (the “Conversion Rights™). Each share of Preference Shares shall be convertible, at the option of the
halder thereof, at any time and from time to time, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder thereof, into such number of fully paid Equity Shares as is
determined by dividing the applicable Original Issue Price by the applicable Preferred Conversion Price in effect at the time of conversion. Each such initial Preferred Conversion
Price, and the rate at which Preference Shares may be converted into Equity Shares, shall be subject to adjustment for Diluting Issues, Share Splits and Consolidations. other
dividends and distributions, merger or reorganisations.

Mandatory conversion:

Upon either (a) prior to the filing of red herring prospectus in connection with an IPO, or (b) the vote or written consent of the Requisite Holders and, for conversion of any series of
the Preference Shares. the vote or written consent, of the holders of at least majority of the outstanding shares of such series of the Preference Shares as required under Applicable
Law. voting as a separate class (such date of filing of the red herring prospectus or the date and time specified in such vote or written consent is referred to herein as the “Mandatory
Conversion Time”), then (i) all outstanding Preference Shares shall automatically be converted into Equity Shares, at the then effective conversion rate as calculated pursuant to Part
Ba)(i)A of Schedule 5 and (if) such shares may not be reissued by the Company.
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(d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Name of the shareholder Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
held held
Equity shares
Lalit Keshre 5,389.347 17% 5.589.547 27%
Harsh Jain 3,926,146 19% 3.926.146 19%
Neeraj Singh 3,580,469 17% 3,580,469 17%
Ishan Bansal 2404497 12% 2,404 497 12%
YC Holdings 1. LLC 2.093 463 10% 2,093 463 10%%
Class A Equity shares
Lalit Keshre 220 25% . 220 25%
Harsh Jain 220 25% 220 25%
Meeraj Singh 220 25% 220 25%
Ishan Bansal 220 25% 220 25%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
Peak XV Partners lnvestments VI-1 (Formerly known as SCI Investments VI-1) 14,681,238 3% 14681238 33%
Ribbit Capital V, L.P.. for itself and as nominee for Ribbit Founder Fund V. L.P. 9,866,032 22% 9,866,032 22%
Y€ Holdings I, LLC 6,850,642 16% 6,850,642 16%
Internet Fund VI Pre. Ltd. 3,822,170 9% 3.822,170 9%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(e) The Company has issued bonus shares during the vear ended 31 March 2023 without payment being received in cash in the ratio 1:609. Pursuant to the merger approved by NCLT,
the bonus shares have been restated as if issued from the beginning of earliest reporting period in the financial statements, imespective of the actual date of the bonus issue.

13 Other equity

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retained eamings (1) (100.006) 4,082
Securities premium (i} 282.696 280,203
Share options outstanding account (iii) 16,067 13,739
Total other equity 198,757 298,024

(i) Retained earnings

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Opening balance 4,082 (36,503)
Add: Profit during the vear (104.098) 40,552
Add: Remeasurement gains on defined emplovee benefit plans (net of tax) 10 53
Closing balance (100.006) 4,082

(ii) Securities premium

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Opening balance 280,203 280,203
Add: Premium received on issue of equity shares 2493 -
Closing balance 182,696 280,203
(iii)_Share options outstanding account
Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 13,739 11,847
Add: Changes during the year 2328 1.892
Closing balance 16,067 13,739

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained earnings:
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and ace
year. the profit (loss) after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained earnings.

d under the heading "Retained Eamings”. At the end of the
(ii) Securities premium: _
Securities premium is used to record the premidm onissue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purpose in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

(iii) Share options outstanding account:
It represents fair value of the employee stock option plan. These option are issued by the Company to the employees of the Company and its subsidiary companies. (Refer note 29)
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14 Trade payables

ents for the vear ended 31 March 2024

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) (refer note 31) 52 -
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
= Pavable to related party 61.635 439
- Other trade pavahle 19.135 6.180
Tatal trade pavables 80,822 6,619
Trade payables ageing
31 March 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction Total
Less than 1 year -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i} MSME 52 - - - 52
(i) Others 6.624 B 3 - 6,636
(iii) Disputed Dues- NSME - - - -
{iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - - -
{v) Unbilled 74,134
Total §0.822
31 March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction Total
Less than I vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - - - - -
{ii) Others 448 5 - - 453
{iii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - - -
{iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - - - -
(v} Unbilled 6,166
Total 6,619
15 Provisions
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
Frovision for gratuity 412 387
Provision for long term employee benefits (refer note 28) 10.617 -
Total 11.029 387
Current
Provision for gratuin 55 41
Tuotal 55 41

16 Other liabilities

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Deferred revenue 13 -
Statutory dues payable 3812 5,869
Advances from customer - 176
Total other current liahilities 3.825 6,045
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17

20

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Platform charges 189,437 82,643
Support services 3,851 3,250
Software development fees - 4,669
Fees and commission income 185 -

Total revenue from operations 193,473 90,562

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated on the basis of geographic region is as below

Particulars

For the yvear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Domestic 193,473 90,562
Expont - -
Total revenue from operations 193,473 90,562

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Services transferred at & point in time 193,473 90,562
Total revenue from operations 193,473 90,562

Other income

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:

(i) Interest Income on term deposits 5.641 7.158

(ii) Interest on unwinding of commercial paper 3,105 1,972

(111} Interest income on non convertible debentures 4013 1,105

(iv) Interest on inter corporate deposit 3087 -
Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss on
investments

(1) Realised gain on sale of mutual fund 1,021 281

{11) Unrealised gain on mutual fund 124 20
Interest income security deposit 55 22
Interest on income tax refund 8 41
Reversal of provision for loss allowances 18 13
Foreign exchange gains (net) 196 844
Others 19 70
Total 17,387 11,526
Employee benefit exj

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, allowances and bonus 103,579 22,850
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 187 216
Share based payment 1,419 1,683
Staff welfare expenses 808 729
Gratuity 180 249
Total 106,173 25,727
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 679 527
Amortisation on intangible assets 5 3
Depreciation on leases 1,122 647
Total 1,806 1,177
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21 Finance costs
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 268 194
Total 268 194
22 Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Marketing and business promotion expenses . 42372 22,371
Software, server and technology expenses 14412 7415
Professional and consulting charges 2,385 1.648
Rent and maintenance charges 302 283
Rates and taxes 3,058 303
Travelling and conveyance charges 263 173
Fayments to auditors
- Statutory audit 23 21
- Tax audit 3 2
- Interim audit 24 -
- Others 10 -
Communication expenses 52 34
Corporate social responsibility 50 -
Miscellaneous expenses 323 24
Total 63,277 32,276
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23 Income Taxes

A. Amount recognised in Standalone Statement of profit or loss

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Current tax

In respect of current vear 12.742 2162
In respect of prior vear 295 -
Total current tax expense 13,037 2,162
Deferred tax

In respect of current vear (3.571) -
Total deferred tax credit (3,571) "
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 9,466 2,162
Income tax expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 4 -
Income tax expense reported in other comprehensive income 4 -

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit before exceptional items and income tax 39,336 42714
Tax at Indian tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2023 : 25.168%) 9.900 10,750
Effect of
Tax on unrecognised tax losses - (8.218)
Tax on expense not tax deductible (609) 16
Items for which deferred tax is not recognised* - (162)
Adjustments on account of merger (refer note 30) B (223)
Others {117) -
Total tax expense 9,174 2,162

* Note: The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset for the year ended 31 March 2023 considering the impact of Section 79 of The Income Tax Act,

1961 upon completion of the amalgamation. (Refer Note 30 for details)

C. Current tax

Particulars G A%
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax asset (net) 6,080 1,093
Current tax liabilities (net) 133,968 -
D. Deferred Tax
As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealised gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (31)
Total deferred tax liabilities (31)
Deferred tax assets

Property plant and equipment 15
Disallowance of expenses 3,494
Lease liabilities 90
Total deferred tax assets 3,599

Net deferred tax liabilities/ (Asset)
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23 Income Taxes (continued)

Movement of deferred tax liabilities presented in the balance sheet

As at

For the year ended 31 March 2024 I April 2023

Recognised in
profit or loss

As at

Recognised in OCI 31 March 2024

Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised gain on securities carried at

fair value through protit or loss / other comprehensive income - 31 - 3l
Deferred tax liabilities - 31 - 31
Deferred tax assets on:

Property, plant & equipment - (15) - (13}
Right of Use assets and Lease liabilities - (90 - (90)
Provision for Gratuity - {121) 4 (118)
Provisions for long term emplovee benefits - (2.672) (2,672)
Deferred revenue - (3) (3)
Merger expenses - (668) (668)
Others - (33) - (33)
Gross deferred tax assets - (3,602) 4 {3,599)
Net deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) - (3,571) 4 (3.568)

E. Tax losses carried forward

Particulars As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Gross Amount

Expiry Date

Gross Amount Expiry Date

Tax losses (business losses) -
Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) -

Various
Indefinite Period

2,738 Various
- Indefinite Period

F. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Gross Amount Unrecognised tax Gross Amount Unrecognised tax
effect effect
Tax losses (business losses) - - 2,738 689
Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) - - - -
Total unrecognised deferred tax assets - - 2,738 689

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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24 Emplovee benefit oblizations

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution are made to Provident fund in India for emplovees. The contributions are made to registered Provident fund administered by the Government. The expenses
recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 187 for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (INR 216 for the vear ended March 31, 2023),

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for emplovees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 vears are
eligible for gratuity. The mmount of gratuity pavable on retirement/termination is the emplovees last drawn basie salary per month computed proportionately for 135 days

salary multiplied for the number of vears of service.

Particulars Asat 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 35 412 4] 387
Total employee benefit obligations 55 412 41 387
(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Description AL g

; March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at beginning of vear 427 212
Current service cost 149 234
Interest cost 3l 15
Actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a) changes in demographic assumption - (81)
b} changes in financial assumptions 2 (8)
¢} experience adjustments {16} 37
Benefits paid 43 -
Transfer infout) (125)
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at vear end 467 427

(ii) Expenses recognised during the yvear

For the vear ended For the vear ended

Heeirtaian March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Current service cost 149 234
Interest cost 31 15
Expenses recognised in Profit and loss 180 249

(iii) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

For the year ended  For the vear ended

Description

' March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Actuarial gains on obligation for the vear 14 33
Net Income for the vear recognised in OCI 14 33

{iv) Actuarial assumptions

Description

Gratuity as on March 31

2024 2023

Mortality table (LIC)

Discount rate (p.a)

Attrition rate

Rate of escalation in salarv (p.a)
Retirement age

India Assured Lives  India Assured Lives
Monality 2012-14 Monality 2012-14

7.15% 7.25%
25.00% 25.00%
11.00% 11.00%
60 Years 60 Years
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24 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(v) Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

pritciline For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Discount rate ; +1% (22) (22)
Discount rate * - % 24 24
Salary escalation rate : +1% 20 20
Salary escalation rate : -1% (19) {19)
Aftrition rate: +1% (%) (10}
Adtrition rate: -1% . g 10

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benetit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit abligation caleulated with the projecied unit credit method at the end of

the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The Mortalitv does not have a significant impact on the Liability | hence are not considered a significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of Sensitivitv analvsis
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior vear.

The expected future contribution and estimated future benefit payments from the fund are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity
Expected contribution to the fund during the year ending 31 March 2024 Unfunded
Estimated benefit payments from the fund - Time period (in years)

Within | year 55
2 - 5 vears 307
6 <10 vears 219
Above 10 vears 124

(Thix space las been intentionally lefi blank)
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15 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values 4
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows;
Level | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilitics
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table shows the carrving amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities. including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

Asat 31 March 2024

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars IVEEL:;  EROULL anoreel Tasslmmig Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
costs amount
Financial assets
Inv {excluding subsidiary)* 5.524 13,844 97,095 116,462 5.524 - 13.844 19,367
Trade receivables - - 68,842 68,842 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 7.085 7.055 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 37.940 37.940 - - - -
Other financial assets - 17,449 17.449 = A = u
5,524 13,844 128,381 247,749 5,524 = 13,844 19,367
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 80,822 80,822 - - - -
Lease liabilities - - 2.050 2.030 - - - i
= - 82,852 82,852 - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
Carrying value Fair value
Tl T FVTPL  FVOCI Amortised  Total carrying il Level 2 Level 3 Total
Ccosts amount
Financial assets
Investments (excluding subsidiary)* 9,784 13,044 89,366 112,194 9.784 - 13.044 22,827
Trade receivables = = 29325 29,325 - - - =
Cash and cash equivalents - - 15818 15,818 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 53,592 53,592 - - - -
Other financial assets - 36,893 36,893 - - - -
9,784 13,044 224,994 247,822 9,784 - 13,044 22,827
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 6,019 6,619 - - - =
Lease liabilities - - 2,851 2,851 - - - -
- - 9,470 9,470 - - 5 -

*Inv t in subsidiaries is d at cost

The company has not separately disclosed the fair values for financial assets and liabilities other than investments, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the
fair values,
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B Measurement of fair values
Valuation technigue used to determine fair values:
Specific valuation technique to value financial instruments like:
i. Use of quoted market prices for financial instruments traded in active markets,
ii. For other financial instruments - discounted cash flow analysis.

C Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
(1) Credit ris|
(11) Liquidity risk: and
(1ii) Market risk

i. Risk management framewoark

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’'s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company. through its training and I standards and
procedures, aims 0 maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions. as well as credit exposure to clients, including trade receivable. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The
Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties. taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on trade receivables for the years ended March 31. 2024 and 2023 was nil and INR 28 respectively. The reconciliation of allowance for
doubtful trade receivables is as follows;

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the yvear 28 34
Changes during the year (28) %
Bad Debts written off - (6)
Balance at the end of the year - 28

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit
rating agencies.
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15 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)
iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delrvering cash or another financial

asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidiry is to ensure. as far as possible. that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both nonmal and
stressed conditions. without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations The Company has managed its liquidity and working
capital requirements through cash generated from operations and through intenmittent short term borrowings. The Company has sufficient short term fund based Hnes. which provides
healthy liquidity and these carry highest eredit quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is perceived.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted. and include estimated interest pavments and
exclude the impact of netting agreements

Contractual eash flows 2

31 March 2024 Carrying amount 6 months or less  Duein6-12 Duein 1 -2 vear Due More than
months 1 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 80,822 80,822 - - -
Lease liabilities 2.030 584 044 802 -
52,852 81,406 644 502 -

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2023 Carrying amount 6 months or less Duein6-12  Duein 1 -2 year Due More than
maonths 2 vears
Nan-tlerivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 6,619 6,619 - - -
Lease liabilities 2.851 454 S04 1,256 578
9,470 7,073 564 1,256 578

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks:
interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financial assets and liabilities, The Company is not
exposed to any significant market risks.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The interest rate risk can also impact
the provision for retiral benefits. The Company generally invests in fixed rate deposits. commercial papers, non covertible debentures, ete and therefore not subject to interest rate risk.
sinee neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in the market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at
Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fitture cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Exposures can arise on account of the
various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.

The following table shows foreign currency exposures in USD on financial instruments at the end of the reporting period:

i) Foreign Currency Exposure:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
USD USD

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable (Rs.) 519 =

Current tax liabilities (Rs.) 133.908 -

Net Total (134,487) .

i) Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
USD USD

1% Depreciation in INR

Impact on statement of profit and loss 1.545 5

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
USD USD

1% Appreciation in INR

Impact on statement of profit and loss {1.345) -

v. Capital Management
The Company s policy is to maintain a sirong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Company
monitors the retumn on capital and its objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder value,
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26 Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

a} Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for

Corporate guarantee for performance obligation of Subsidiary company 2.400 5
b) Comunitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for - -
¢) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts - -

The Company did not have any long tenn contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

27 Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the year ended

Parficulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Earnings
Profit/ (Loss) for the year atributable to equity shareliolders for caleulation of basic and diluted EPS (In INR Lakhs) (104,088) 40,585

Nhares (refer note 37)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear for calculation of basic EPS (In Lakhs) * 9,738 9,728
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares 865 8§27
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of diluted EPS (In Lakhs) 10,603 10,555
Basic earnings per share {10.69) 4.17
Diluted enrnin&s per share (10.69) 3.85
Nominal value per share * 10 10

2

oe

Related party disclosures
As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures (Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Company are as follows:

A Names of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have taken place

Name Type

Groww Ing Holding company (upto March 28, 2024) (refer note 30)
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion  |Subsidiary company

Technology Private Limited)

Meobillion Fintech Private Limited Subsidiary company
Groww Pay Services Private Limited Subsidiary company
Groww Serv Private Limited Subsidiary company
Groww Creditserv Technology Private Limited Enterprises having key management personnel in common (upto 12 April 2023)

Associate company (w.e.f 13 April 2023 to 11 January 2024)
Subsidiary company (w.e.f. 12 January 2024)

Finments Tech Private Limited {Formerly known as Finvantage Enterprises having key management personnel in common
Investment Adviser Private Limited) {subsidiary w.e.f. 8 March 2023)
Billionblocks Finsery Private Limited Subsidiary company
Groww AA Private Limited Subsidiary company (upto 20 June 2023)
Enterprises having key management personnel in (w.e.f2] June 2023)
Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited |Subsidiary company
Groww Asset Management Limited Subsidiary company
Groww IFSC Private Limited Subsidiary company
Groww Trustee Limited Subsidiary company
Lalit Keshre Key personnel
Harsh Jain Key management personnel
Neeraj Singh Key i personnel (w.e.f. 27 March 2023)

Ishan Bansal Key management personnel (w.e.f, 27 March 2023)
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B The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Nature of Transaction

Related Party

For the vear ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Groww Invest Tech Pnvate Limited {Formely known as Nextbillion
Technology Private Limited)

Neobillion Fintech Private Limited

Groww Pay Services Private Limited

Groww Serv Private Limited

Groww Creditsery Technology Private Limited

Finments Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Finvantage
luvestment Adviser Private Limited)

Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited
Groww AA Private Limited
Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited

Groww Asset Management Limited

Platform charges

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Remmbursement paid

Software development fees

Support services

Intercorporate deposit given

Intercorporate deposit receovered

Interest on Intercorporate Deposit

Platfonn charges

Support services

Expenses mcurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Reimbursement paid

Investment in equity instruments

Support senices

Software development fees

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Remmbursement paid

Support services

Professional and consulting charges

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Reimbursement paid

(i3S in equity instr

Suppor services

Other income *

Platfonn charges

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Reimbursement paid

Ty in equity instr

Intercorporate deposit given

Intercorporate deposit receovered

Interest on [ntercorporate Deposit

Software development fees

Support services

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Reimbursement paid

Investment in equity instruments

Interest on Intercorporate Deposit

Intercorporate deposit given

Intercorporate deposit receovered

Professional charges

Inv in equit}* nstr

In in equity instr t

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Iy in equity instry

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Support services

Expenses incurred by Company on hehalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses curred by related party on behalf of Company
Reimbursement paid

(186,847)
(5.975)

5,399

342
(496)
(2.999)
(116,930}

116,950
(31)
(1,537)
(88)
(58)

40

2
(2)

1,000
(201)
(325)

312

74
(156)
(58)

813
(85)

65

14
(14)

(121)
(7)
(1,052)
(226)
226
52
(47)
26,640
(73,689)
36,730
(2.434)

(157)
(192)
105
36
(26)
400
(17)
920)
148

(B0.985)
(2.864)
4.045

346
(94)
(4.573)
2457
(1.657)
(422)
(182)
190
0
(0)
(5)
(20)
(138)
125
254
(167)
(323)
504
(60)
60

@)
600
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16 Related party disclosures (continued)

Far the year ended For the vear ended

Nature of Transaction Related Party 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Groww IFSC Private Limited Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party {0) -
Reimbursement recovered 0 7
Groww Trustee Limited Support services (16) -
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party 0) -
Reimbursement recovered 0 -
Key management personnel Purchase of equity instruments 11,184 4,163
Sale of equity instruments (230} #
Short tenn employee benefits 78,802 627
Post employment benefits** 0 3
Long tenm employee benefits 10,617 -

* The Corporate Guarantee Commission charged to related party is INR 20 of which INR 7 is recognised on time proportionate basis in Statement of profit and loss for vear ended
March 31. 2024 and remaining amount of INR 13 is shown as deferred revenue as on March 31, 2024,

C.  Outstanding balances

. As at Asat
i i Relnc ooty 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion  Trade receivables 68,276 27,339
Technology Private Limited) Other financial assets 1,047 471
Trade payables (o) (255)
Finments Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Finvantage Trade payables (10)
Investment Adviser Private Limited) Trade receivables - 73
Other financial assets 87 -
Intercorporate Deposit 772 -
Interest accrued on Intercorporate Deposit 7 -
Neobillion Fintech Private Limited Trade payables - (12}
Trade reccivables 80 1,874
Other financial assets 18 1
Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as Billionbrains Trade payables (28) (B6)
Capital Private Limited) Trade receivables ) -
Other financial assets 24 4
Advance from customer - (176)
Giroww Pay Services Private Limited Trade payables (5) (87)
Trade receivables - 35
Other financial assets 30 22
Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited Other financial assets 1 -
Groww Creditserv Technology Private Limited Trade receivables 182 !
Trade payables (5) -
Other financial assets 101 16
Intercorporate Deposit 36,959 o
Interest accrued on [ntercorporate Deposit 742 -
Groww AA Pyt Ltd Other financial assets ] -
Groww Insurance Broking Private Limited Other financial assets 0 -
Groww Asset Management Limited Trade payables 27 -
Trade receivables 172 -
Other financial assets 225 -
Groww Trustee Limited Trade receivables 16 -
Other financial assets 0 -
Key managerial personnel Provision for short term employment benefits (61.460) 0
Provision for post employment benefits** {62) -
Provision for long term employee benefits (10,617) -
**Transactions and balances with key management personnel for the year ended March 31. 2024 is basis allocation for gratuity of key I | obtained from actuary ;

March 31, 2023 did not include provisions gratuity as separate details were not available.
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29 Share Based Payments

All the Group's employees approved by the Board, are eligible for being considered for the grant of stock options under Groww Inc 2017 Stock Incentive Plan ("GSIP
2017") administered by the erstwhile Holding Company.

Stock options granted under GSIP 2017 would vest based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the respective Stock option Grant Notice, The holding company has
issued fully vested stock options and stock options with a vesting period of 12 - 48 months with a cliff of 12 months in graded manner. Vesting of options would be subject
to continued employment with a Company. The specific vesting schedule and conditions subject to which vesting would take place would be outlined in the document
given to the option grantee at the time of grant of options. The excercise price of the options granted during the year is USD 0.27.

For stock options issued under GSIP 2017, the weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $14.50 - $18.96, equivalent average INR is 1,193 - 1,370
(31 March 2023: $18.80 - $20.22). As at 31 March 2024, the weighted average contractual remaining life of options is 16.11 - 19.54 years,

Pursuant to the filing of the scheme of merger of the Groww Inc with the holding company is approved by the Hon'ble NCLT via merger order dated 28 March 2024. the
options of earlier period have been adjusted for swap ratio as applied to equity shareholders and have been restated as if they were available of earliest reporting period in
the financial statements. irrespective of their actual date.

As per the approval from shareholders of the holding company, GSIP 2017 is replaced by "Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme
2024" (‘BGV ESOS 2024') effective from 29th March 2024 which is prepared basis the same terms and conditions as of GSIP 2017 except on the exercise period of the
options which is modified to twenty years from existing ten years and excercise price has been updated to Rs 10 for all the options.

Employees were provided option of cash or share based payment alternative for performance bonus. Pursuant to the same, the Company paid performance bonus in the
form of stock options amounting to Rs. 115 (31 March 2023; 85) which is included as part of Salaries, allowances and bonus.

Movement of share options during the financial year:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Outstanding as at the beginning of the vear 5,512,800 5,367,234
- Granted 422.542 341912
- Forfeited (99.222) (196.346)
- Excercised {72.233) -
Qutstanding as at the end of the year 5,763,867 5,512,800
Vested as at the year end 4,970,161 4,491,255

Fair value of stock options granted

The fair value of the stock options granted is estimated at the grant date using arm’s length price of the stock options computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the stock options were granted. The inputs used to measure fair values of options granted on the grant date were as

follows:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dividend yield (% p.a.) 0% 0%
Expected volatility (% p.a.) 435412 3T%- 43%
Risk-free interest rate (% p.a.) 3.6% - 4.6% 2.28%-4.22%
Expected life of option (years) 6.50-7.00 2
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30 Business Combinations
Cross-border merger of Groww Ine
A. Background

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 234 of the Compantes Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions, read with National Company Law

Tribunal Rules. 2016 and Companies (C Arrang 1t and Amalgamations} Rules. 2016 and enabling provisions in the Company’s Nemorandum and Articles of

¥
Association vide order dated 28 March 2024, the NCLT has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation ("the Scheme") for amalpamation of Groww fnc, USA, pursuant to the

General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. USA ("Transferat Company™) with and into Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited ("the Company”} or ("Transferce

Company™) or (BGV).

Carl

shareholding structure and reduction of shareholding tiers so that the Group can tap the efficiencies of being an Indian company given the regulatory framework applying to the
Group's varnous businesses.

Further, the said merger is expected to result in the following business objectives-

- simplifying and unifying the holding structure of the group through an amalgamation:

. efficient decision making by eliminating duplicate carporate procedures in the State of Delaware duc to a streamlined holding structure and simplify and eliminate the 1
company transactions;

. economising and reducing in administrative, managerial and other common expenditure: and

B. Appointed date

The Scheme was made effective from 29 March 2024 based on Form Ine-28 filed with the Registrar of Companies ("ROC") with an appointed date 1 April 2023.

{ 1o the reconstitution Company has subscribed to the equity. Class A equity and preference share capital. This acquisition has lead to simplification of the

nter-

Consequently, the Company has included the financial information of the Transferor Company in its standalone financial statements with effect from appointed date {which is
deemed to be the acquisition date for purpose of Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations), 10 include the information of the Transferor Company. Consequently, the figures for the
vear ended March 31. 2023 have been restated from the earfiest reporting period 10 give impact of the Scheme (refer section € below). Therefore, financial statements for the year

ended March 31, 2023 are not strietly comparable with the previous year's financial statement.

. Accounting

Upon this Scheme Decoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Company has accout d for the amal tion in its books of account in accordance with

“Pooling of Interests Method' prescribed in *Appendix C' “Business combinations of entities under common control’ of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) 103
Business Combinations notified under Section 133 of the Indian Companies Act read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The accounting under pooling of interest method is as follows:

|, The assets and Tiabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying anounts.
2. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or Jiabilities. The only adjustments that are made are 10 harmonise accounting policies. if applicable.
3. The financial information of the respective prior periods has been ted as if the busi bi
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

D. Carrying Value of Assets acquired and Liabilities | on the acquisition date:

Groww Inc., Balance Sheet as on 1 April 2023

Particulars Amount
in Rs. Lakhs

Investments 283,452
Cash and cash equivalents 15,754
Other financial assets 1,987
Other current assets 9
Tatal Assets 301,202
Share capital -
Retained eamings (153)
Securities premium 287,128
Share options outstanding account 13.739
Total Eguiw 300,714
Trade pavables and other payables 488
Total Liabilities 488
Total Equities and Liabilities 301,202

tion had occurred from the beginning of the earliest period reported in the
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E. Consideration

The consideration is based on the fair share exchange ratio of 2.2:1 as approved by the Boards of the relevant Companies (“Swap Ratio™), i.e.. for every one (1) common stock
held in the Transferor Company. such shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted twa point two (2.2) equity shares of Rs. 10 per share in the Transferee Company,
for every one (1) founder common stock held in the Transferor Company, such shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted two point two (2.2) class A equity shares
of Rs. 10 per share and for every one (1) preferred stock held in the Transferor Company. such shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted two point two (2.2)
preference shares of Rs. 10 per share in the Transferee Company. pursuant to the merger. Accordingly-

(1) Equity Shares

20.752.089 equity shares of face value of Rs, 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Tne.

Equity share capital of BGV i.e, 68,100,095 shares held by Groww Inc. shall stand cancelled.

(if) Class A Equity Shares

880 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc

(i1} Series A-1 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

10,446,663 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc.

{iv) Series A-2 00000 1% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

509,299 CCPS of face value of Rs, 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Ine.

(v} Sentes A-3 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

1,842,500 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc.

(vi} Series A-4 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Prefi ¢ Shares (CCPS)

2,653,200 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc.

{vii) Series B 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

10.820.404 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc,

{vin) Series C-1 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

6.411.899 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Ine.,

(ix) Series C-2 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preterence Shares (CCPS)

542,340 CCPS of face value of Rs, 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Ine.

(x) Series D 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

4.918.507 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc.

{xi) Series E 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

6.043,171 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc.

F. Exchange differences due to elimination between the investment made by Groww Inc, and share capital (including securities premium) issued by the Company in the process
of merger has been adjusted with securities premium of the Company.

Particulars In the books of Amount
(INR i lakhs)
Equity shares issued to Groww Inc, BGV 6,810
Securities premiuim on Equity shares issued to Groww Inc, BGV 275,163
Investment in BGV Groww Inc {282.412)
Adjustment in securities premium (440)

G. Other Equity Reconciliation

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars BGV Groww Inc Merger Total
UL —
Other equity (before merger and other adjustments) 279,397 300,714 - 580,111
Consideration {Refer note 30(E)) (6,485) (6,485)
Merger and other adj - (275.602) (275,602)

Other eguirv Inl‘ter merger and other ad!‘nsrmenls} 2792‘17 30&71 4 (282,087) 198‘024

H. Profit Before Tax Reconciliation

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars BGV Groww Ine Merger Total
adjustments
Profit Before Tax (before merger and other adjustments) 41.820 894 - 42,714

Merper and other adj - - = o

Profit Before Tax (after merger and other :ltljusrrnmtsl 41 820 894 - 42,714

L. Exceptional item

The merger of Groww Inc. (Groww) with Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited qualify as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a} 1)(A) or Section 368{a) 1}D)
of the US Federal tax laws in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (hereinafier referred to as ‘US Tax Laws'). subject to mecting various reorganization requirements. However, the
said merger is expected to be considered taxable under Section 367 of the US Tax Laws. even if the merger otherwise qualifies as a reorganization under Section 368(a)( 1)} A) or
Section 368(a){ 1)(D). As per the US tax Laws, Section 367 overwrites Section 368 and the merger is subject to a US “Outbound” merger Tax wherein Groww Inc. would have to
recognize the gain in its assets (i.e. difference between the fair market value of such assets and the US tax basis in such assets), which would be subject to a US tax at the rate of
21%.

Hence. the company has created an estimated tax liability of 133,968 lakhs on account of the US taxes applicable on the Outbound merger, The estimated tax lability has been
disclosed as an exceptional item in the statement of profit and loss,
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31 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

32

33

34

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in
their correspondence with its ¢ s the Entrey s Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts pavable
to such enterprises as at 3! March 2025 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the company, Further, in management's view, the impact of
interest, if'any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medizm Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006 ('the Act') is not expected to be material

. Asat As at
Vardisaiivy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The prineipal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting vear

- Principal amount 51 i
- Interest due therean - -
The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made to the supplier bevond the appainted day during the vear - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bevond the appointed day - -
during the vear) but without adding the interest under this Act

Amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year A = -
The amount of funther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, till acwually paid to the small enterprise, for the - -
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure,
Total outstanding principal dues of micro small and medium enterprises included in trade payables {(Note 13) 52 -

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (" Intermediaries") with the und ding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultinate Beneficiaries). The Company has niot received any fund from any parties (funding pany) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend or fnvest in other persons or entities identified by or behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uliimate
Beneficiaries

Key Ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Variance %
2) Current ratio Total current assets Total current liabilities 0.99 14,83 -93%
b} Return on equity ratio Profit for the year less Average total equity -41% 15% ~56%
Preference dividend (if any)
¢} Trade receivables turnover ratio  Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 394 417 ~i%%
d) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations Average working eapital (1.c. Total 207% T6% 131%
current assets less Total current
liabilities)
¢} Net profit ratio Profit for the year Revenue from operations 549 45% -09%
f) Return on capital employed Praofit before tax and finance  Capital employed = Net worth + Lease 40 13% -03%
costs liabilities + Deferred tax liabilities

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as comy i to the i Iy previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations thereaf:

Ratio Reason for Variance

a) Current Ratio Decrease is on account of increase in trade payables and decrease in investments and cash

b} Net capital nirnover ratio Improved on account increase in tech platform and support charges

¢) Net profit ratio, Decrease on account of increase in employee benefit expenses and other expenses, thereby casuing reduction in profit for the year

Segment Reporting

The Company prep: the lidated financial - In accordance with Ind AS 108 on operating seyments, the Company has not disclosed the segments information in the
dalone financial
The financial statements are presented in INR Lakhs (rounded off). Those items which are required to be disclosed and which were not i d in financial due to ding off 10

the nearest INR Lakhs are given below in INR:

As at / for the vear ended

Particulars Nate 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Share capital 29 (D} - 20,319
Foreign Currency Exposure 24 (iv) - 5,183
Foreign Currency Sensitivitv- 1% Depreciation in INR 24 (v} - 52
Foreien Currency Sensitivity- 1% Appreciation in INR 24 (iv) - (52)
Advances from customer 16 7 -
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) (refer note 31) 14 - 17,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital (shares pending issuance)® - Class A Equity 12 8,800 8,800
Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023: INR. 10/-)
Authorised share capital - Class A Equity Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023; INR 10/-)* 12 10,000 10,000
Cash in hand 8A 33,339 33,000
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36 Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) exp

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, a company meeting the activity threshold needs to spend at least 2% of s average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial vears on
corporate socal responsibility (CSR) actvvities. The Company undertook two mitiatives to channehise effonts to empower the underprivileged constituents of society through Computer Aided
Learning and Digital Literacy as Life Skill Program i schools and Child Empowerment Foundation India (Bal Utsav)- Ishaala p d d in the d of Financial and Dignal
Lueracy, Skilling of youth in the state of Karnataka

We partnered with two eredible Non-Profit Organisations namely Pratham Infotech Foundation Trust and Child Empowerment Foundation Indu

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year Rs 49 50 lakhs (31 March 2023 nil) There 18 no unspent amount at the beginning of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total amount spent for the | Total amount Date  of [Total amount spent for |Total amount transferred [Date of transfer

Particulars Mnancial year transf I 1o P i the financial year to unspent CSR account

CSR account as per as per subsection (6) of

subsection (6} of Section 135

Section 135
Construction/acy) of any asset - - - - NA
On purpose of other than above 37 13 |18-Apr-24 - - NA

37 Subsequent events
A Pursuant to letter dated 04 Apnl 2024, Secunities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) approved the Company to act as a Sponsor of Groww Mutual Fund and to acquire 100%
sharchalding of Groww Asset Management Limited {Groww AMC) & Groww Trustee Limned {Groww Trustee) from Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (GIT)  Subsequently, approval to
amend the trust deed has been recerved from SEBI on June 26, 2024

B In accordance with the provisions of Section 13, 61 and 64 read with the Compamies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of
the Company vide resolution dated 28 June 2024 have approved to mncrease the Authorized Share Capital of the Company to Rs 120,000 dnaded into 112,49,75,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/
each, 25,000 Class A Equuty Shares of Rs 10/~ each, and 7,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs 10/~ each

€ Pursuant to Section 63 read with Rule 14 of the Compames (Share Caputal and Debentures) Rules, 2014 of the Comparies Aet, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company vide
resolution dated July 31, 2024 has approved the ssuance of bonus shares to the holders of the Equity Shares and Class A Equity Shares of the Company as on August 08, 2024 (“Record
Date”) n the ratio of 14 1 1e, 14 equity shares for every | equity share and Class A equity share held i the Company The Board has further approved the extension of the benefits m
relation to the aforesaid bonus ssuance to the holders of stock options and each of the Series Al Series A2, Series A3, Series A4, Series B, Senies Cl, Series C2, Serwes D, and Series E
0 00001 CCPS of the Company, such that upon conversion, each CCPS holder shall recene 15 equiy shares each. for every | CCPS held by such CCPS holder in the Company Further,
the adjustments on ssue of bonus shares as aforesasd shall alaos be made to the outstanding options granted to the option holders of the Campany

As per aur report of even date
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iﬂ'EIBDeﬂﬂem Auditors Report

To the Members of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

udited by the off rs, the: said consolidated financial statemeriis give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’):in the:maninier so required and give-a frue and fai view il
conformiity with.the accounting. principles gerierally accepted in dndia, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as ‘gt 31 March 2024, of its consolidated loss and other comprehensive loss, conisolidated
changes in equity-and consolidated cash fiows for the periad then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance Wwith the Standards on Auditing (SAs): specified. under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further deseribed in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the. Consolidated Financial Statements section of our repon. We -are
independent of the Group in.accordarice with the ethiical requirements {hat are relevant fo our audit of the
consofidated: financial -statements in termis of the Code of Ethics issted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Acl, and we have fulfilled our other -ethicai
Tesponsibilities in-accordande. these requirements. We believe that e audit'evidence abtained by.us
along with:the consideration of reports of the. othér avditors: referred to in- paragraph.(a) of the *Other
Matters? section.below, is sufficient.and appropriate to provide a basisfor our-opir oty the ed

ments

The Holding Comipany's. Management and Board of Directors. are responsibie: for thie: other information,
The dther-information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's directors! report; but
does ot include the financial statements-and auditor's report thereon,”

Qur opinion on the cansolidated finaricial statements does not-cover the other infarmation and we do.not

express.any:form of assurance conclusion thereor.

In connection with our audit of the cansulidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informatiori and, in doing. so, consider whether the other information i materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statéments or our knowledge obtained in the .audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. 1f; based an the work we have performed and based on the work done/audit reports
of ather auditors, we conclude that there is & matefial rriisstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this reégard.

Régisterad Offce.

BSR&To {a partnership frm wath-Registralon do. BAB1Z23; converled 118 B R 4.0 LLP {3 $4in Flocr. Cenral B "Wing'and North C Wing, Nesco 1t Park-4, Meseo
Limited Liability Parinarship wath LLP Reqisiration Ho. AAR-838E) with-effect from Citaber 14, 2013 Center, Westam Express Highway, Goregaon (Easty, Murtibaf - 400063 °
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The. Holdinig C:b'm'pén_y-"_'s_ Marj_agéménf ;énd"B'oa_rd'Qf_ };’firec_t"q;s_ are-responsible-for the preparatios and
presentation of these consolidatéd financial 'statéments ih term of the: requirements ofthe Act that give
a true-and fair view of the corisolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss-and other comprehensive

income; consolidated statement -of changes i equity and’consolidatéd cash flows of the Group iri

accordance. with the.accounting principles: genérally aceepted iin India, including-the Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) specified: under Section 133 of the Act, The tespsctive Management and ‘Board of
Dirgctors of the. companies included in the-Group are respansible for maintenarice of adequate-accounting
visions of the-Act for safeguardirig:the assets of each company and for

records:in accordance with the provisiol

preventing and detecting fralds and- other irreguiarities; the selection -and :application” of appropriate

accounting policies: making judgments-and estimates thiat are reasonabié and prudent;-and asign,

implementation -and maintenance of adequate:internal financial oy ar
: ih i e

of the consolidaled. financial statements by the
Comipany,.as aforesaid. -

In-preparing the consolidated financiat statements; the respective. Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responisible for dssessing the ability of each company ia continge.
as a:going concern, -disclosing, as applicable, matters related to’ going .concern -and using- the_going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either infenids 3 liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to-do so.

The respeclive Boari of Directors of the compariies included in the Group are fesponsible for oversesing

the financial reporting process of each company.

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance abotit whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud of error, and to'issue an.auditor's
report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is ahigh fevel of assurance: butis not 2 guarantée
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always. detect a material misstatemant when it exists.

eitor and are considered material i, in rin th
to influence. -tf__ie.-fea_on_omic'_:':deCi_s_ionf;s__'.c'f users.taken on the basis of

Misstatements can-arise from:fraud o;
they could reasonably be expecte
-{h’Efse:{.tén_sd{ic_i'éted?'ﬁﬁa_h_‘c’_*;:i_fa{_:.st_'a__t '

 material if, individually or in the aggregate;

As part.of-an:audit in‘accordance with § jé_,-.wefe_xe.'rt‘_:‘i_ée-;prof_e'ssiona'l']_udg'r'r'iént.'a_rid'.:.mé:i_h'taih professional
skepticism throughout the audit: We'also: - ; : '

*  ldentify and assess thé fisks of material misstatérient of the: consalidated financial statements,
whether dug to-fraud or error, design’ and perform audit procedures respensive to those fisks, and
-obtain audit-evidence: that is. sufficient-and appropriate to ‘provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement.resuiting from fralid'is higher than for. one:resulting from.error,
as fraud may involve colfusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations; or the override of
internat contral.. :

*  Obtain an-understanding of internal control relevanit to the audit in order to design audit procedures:
that are appropriate.in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the:Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with.
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

+ Evaliate the appropriafenéss of-accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of atcounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors,

¢+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concemn
basis of accounting in preparation of consoiidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a matefial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
Page 2 of 9
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significant dowbt on the appropriateness of this:assumption: ifwe conclude th at.a.material uncertainty-
exists, we are.required to draw aftention i our auditor's répoit 1o the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our.opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit-eviderice obtained up fo the date of ouir-auditer’s report, However,
future events or conditions may:cause the Group:to.cease to continge:as a.goihg congern.

* Evaluate the.overall presentation, structurs and content of. the consolidated. financial statements,
inciiding the disclostires, and whetherthe consolidated firancial staternérits represent the uid erlylfig

‘transactions-and everits in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain _.sufﬁqie:n__t approgriate -'a_Udi_[_-.'ev'iden_ca-:regarding the financial statement_g_ of such-entities or
business activities:within the Group.to €xpress ari opinion on-the: consalidated.financial statements.
We are responsible for the: direction, s'u_pervis_ion_ ahd_____perﬁqrgn_a_n_q'e_'-_:o’f't_h_g- t:jit_.-:q__f'_th_e.-:ﬁ_han_gia_l.

fsuch entities included in the consalidated financlal statement

We communicate with those charged with governance of ihe Holding Company and such other entitiés
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we' are the independent auditors regarding,

among other matters, the' planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify-during-aur dudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with reievant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with' them all rélationships and other
matters that may reasonabiy be thought te bear on our independence, ‘and where applicable, related:
‘safeguards. " ' -

a. We.did not audit the financial statements. of 7 subsidiaries, whosé fidancial statements réflect total
asséts (before consolidation :adjustments). of Rs: 84,334 lakhs as. at 31 March 2024, fotal revenue
from operations (before consalidation adjustments) of Rs, 10,735 lakhs and netcash outflows (before
consolidation. adjustments) amounting to- Rs. (1,41 0) lakhs. for the year € ofi that date;
-consider the- consolidated finar ements: These finar :

= consolidated financial statements; in so-far 45 it refates 1o the amolints and discl
in-respect of these subsidiaries, and our repart in tefris.of sub=section (3) of Section 143 6f the Act,
in:so far ag it relates to the aforesaid subsittiaries is based ‘salely’on the-reports. of the other-auditors,
Our-opinion-on the cansolidated financial statements, and our report on-Otter Legal and Regulatary
Requiréments below, is hot modified in respect of this matter with.respect to out reliance on the wark
‘done’and the reparts of the: other auditors.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report): Order, 2020°(‘the Order?) issued by the Ceritral

Gavernment of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” @ statémeiit
ori the matiers specified in:paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appiicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of sich subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditors; as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and dbiained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
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those-books and the reports

-comprehensive ncomey; the consolidated statement of ¢

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

knowledge arid belief were necassary for.the:purposes. of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
finaricigl statémeits. '

In:our opinion, proper books of account.as required by law relating to préparation of the aforesaid
cotisolidated financial statements have been kept'sofar as.it-appears from Gur:exarnination of
f the-ather auditors: éxcept for-the: mattars stated in th & paragiaph
2B(f) below on .__rep‘or{i'_ng_-_un'qgrf'Rul_e';.‘l_f-‘l {g)-of the Companies {Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014,

Tha: consolidated balafice shest, the congolidated statement of profit and-loss. (i’n_{:l{udi'r_ig:-;._ot'_hef-

h fiows dealt-with by this Report ai

It roup:comparie:
appointed as:a director.in't

the ddverse remark relating fo the maintenance ‘of accourts. and other mattérs connectéd

thetewitty are as.stated in ihe paragraph-2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143¢3)(k)- and

paragraph 2B(f)} below on reparting under Rule-11{(g) of the Compariies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules; 2014,

With respect 1o thé adeguacy of the. internat financial contrals with reference ‘to- financial
statements of the Holding Companyand its subsidiary:companies.and the operating effectiveriess
of such controls, refer to‘our Separate Report in*Anhexure B,

B. With respact to the other matters to-be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with- Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our-opinion-and to:the best.6f Gur ifformation and
according to the explanations given to us:and based on the consideration of the reports-of the other
audifors on ‘separate. financial statements.of the subsidiaries, a8 noted in the “Other Maltters”

‘paragraph;

a.

Thére are’ne amourits: which are. required to -:__b_é__--'t__ra'r_lfs_fé_r_r:é_d? fo thie.Investor 'E_duc_at_ib'n and:
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India diiring
the period endéd 31 March 2024 '

d (i) The respective management.of the Holding Company and its stibsidiary companies indorporated

in India whose finanoial statemeniis have been audited under the Act have represanted-to iis and
the other auditors of such subsidiary. cormpanies that, to-the bast-of their knowledge and beligf,
as disclosed in the Note 35 fo the:consolidated financial” staternents: fio funds have been
-advanced or loaned of invested {either from barrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind af funds). by the Holding Company or-any of such subsidiary-compariies: fo or if-
any other person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities ("Intermediartes”), with the:
understanding, whether recorded:in’ writing ‘of otherwisg, that'the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lénd or invest.iii ofher persons orentities identified in any manhier whatsoever by or.on
behalf of the Holding Company or any of such'subsidiary companies (“Uliimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the ike on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries,

(iiy The fespective management of the Holding. Company and'its subsidiary companiés incorperated

i India whose ﬁria‘_ncial.s_t_atements have been audited under the Act have represénted td us and
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

the ether auditors.of such subsidiary comparies that, to-the best of their knowledge: and belief,
3s disclosed in the Note 35 to. the cangolidatéd financial statements; no funds have been received.

by the:Hoiding. Company.or any of such subsidiary companies from any-person(s).or en’t_ity_{ieé’},

ingluding foreign entities (*F unding Parties”), with the uriderstanding, whether recorded inwriting
or-otherwiss, that-the Holding Company or any of siich subsidiary companies: shall directly or-
indirectly, lend or invest.in-ather persons or eéntities identified in any manner whatsogver by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Benéficiarias”)or provide any guarantee, security or the
like: oy behaif of the Uitimate Beneficiaries. '

(iify Based on'the audit procedures-that have ‘been considered reasgnable.and appropriaté in ‘the
circurnstances performed by us.and that performed by the auditors of the.subsidiary companies
incorporated fn India whose financial: statements have: been-audited under the Act; nothirig has

(i

(i)

it has caused s or the. other ‘auditars to-beligye- that lﬁ.?:? '

come 1o.0ur or other auditors notic ca ) _ _
nd (f)-of Rule 11(e), as-provided undsr (i and (ii)-above,

Tepresentations under sub- (i)
containzany material misstatefngnt.

The Holding Com) ity dltsubsz ""_'a:r.yj__c__'_r'n'p_éniés__iﬂ'do'rp'd[atéﬁ.'iﬁ_- |_h;‘:[i§a:_h_ai;_r'e._n_eith'é;'jdec't_ared

Based on olr-éxamination which included test i:;h_éck.s--and"_thé’t performed by the respective

auditors of the subsidiary companies incotporated in India whose financial statements Have bes

‘audited under the Act, except fot the instances mentioned below, the Holdirg Company anit ifs
subsidiary companies ‘have used an accounting software for maintaining its books -of account

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit jog) fagility andthe same has operated throughout
the. period for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our

‘audit, we and respective auditors of suc'h.subsi_dia_ry companies did not-come atross any instance

of audit trail feature being tampered with:

In respect of the Helding Company and 10 subsidiary companies, the accounting software far
maintairiing its books of account Has a feature of recording audit trail (edif log) facllity that has
been enabied in @ phased manner staring from 1 April 20231l 31" October 2023 and that audit
trail was not enabléd at the databiasé level, to log:any direct data changes.

In respect of the 1 $ubsidiary company, the accounting soffwarg for maintaining its books of
account which has.a feature of recording. audit trail-(edit 10g). facility ‘except in respect.of the
general iedger system-wherein th - audit:trail (edit log)-facility. he's beer ehabled.in a ‘phased
rannerstarting from.1-April 2023 31 October 2023, and that 4 hwas not enabled at the
database level for generalledger system; revenue and ‘operations system, t6-log any: direct data
changes.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited
by us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and 9
subsidiary companies incorporated in India since none of these companies is a public company. In
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, for 2 subsidiary companies
to which the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are applicable, have not paid any remuneration to
its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 187(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:104248W/\W#1 00022

1.
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 August 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFI0OL5988
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the
period ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’'s Report)
Order, 2020 reports of the companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated
financial statements.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

1
Rohit Alexander
Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 August 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFIOL5988
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Annexure B fo the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated finan cial
statements of Billionbrains. Garage Ventures Private Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to' in paragraph 2({A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report. of even date)

It canjuriction with: gur aidit of the-consolidated financiat statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventires:
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to-as: “the- Helding Cempany").as-of andforthé period ended:31 March
2024, we have audited:the internal-financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Halding:
Company ahd such companies incorporated:in India undsr the Act which: are.its.subsidiary companies,

as-of that date:.:

nd-such ‘companiesincorporate did-whi
s.-adequate: internal-financial.controls with referénice to'financial ents
Internal financial controls-were operating effectively as at 31 Mareh 2024, based on the intemal financial
controls with referenice to financial statements criteria established by such companies cansidering the
essential components of such intemal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Nate™).

The respective Company’s. Management and the Board of Directors are esponsible for establishing ang
maintaining internal financial contréls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
stalements Criteria established by the respective compary considering the -essential companents of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were-operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly. and' efficient conduct.of its business, including. adherence to. the respective :company’s policies,
the. safeguarding of its assets, the pevention and detection of frauds and efrors, the “accuracy and
completeness.of the'accounting records; and the timely preparation: of relfable-financial information, a5

Cur responsibility is-to express an opinich 6n the internal financial controls -with teference to financial
statements based on .our audit. We cohducted-our audit in dccordance: with the Guidance' Note and the
Standards on. Auditing: prescribed undgr Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent-dpplicable to-an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Thase Standards-and the Guidance.
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements-and plan and perform the audit to:obtain reascnable
assurance about whether adequate internal finaricial centrols with reference to financial statements were:
established and maintained-and if such controls operated effectively in all materiai respects.

Our audit involves performing, procedures to obtdin audit evidence-about the adequacy of the internai
financial controls with referénce o financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial contrals with reference to- financial statements included obtaining -an understanding. of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, ard testing and. evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procédures sélected depend ori the auditor’s judgement, including the
‘assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fiaud or error.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor
of the relevant subsidiary company in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to a subsidiary
company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor
of such company incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/\W-1p0022

‘/

AN

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 August 2024 ICAI UDIN:24222515BKFIOL5988
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet

(AN amenmes are in INR Lakhs wiless atherwive stared)

As at As at
e A 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3A 1311 1.390
Intangible assets iB . 4,367 47
Capital work-in-progress iC - 9
Right-of-use-assets 9 2025 2545
Goadwill 31.869 27.684
Financial assets
i, Investments 4 71,308 35,543
il. Loans BA 44,784 -
iii. Other financial assets 8B 3452 11,441
Deferred tax assets 22 4.428 87
Total non-current assets 163,604 79,146
Current assets
Financial assets
i, Investinents 5 70,658 87,304
il. Trade receivables 6 6,940 3.622
ili. Cash and cash equivalents TA 30,788 32,883
. Bank balances other than cash and cash eqm\"ilcnls B 343417 141,688
v. Loans 8A 26,925 -
vi. Other financial assets 8B 149,655 129,678
Current tax assets (net) 22 6.544 1,577
Other current assets G 3205 4.879
Total current assets 638,192 401,631
Total assets 801,796 480,777
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 10 6,492 6,485
Other equity 11A 247776 325.192
Sharcholders’ funds attributable to owners of the Company 254,268 331,677
MNon-controlling interests 1B - -
Total Sharcholders' funds 154,268 331,677
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
I. Lease Liabilities 29 1,246 2.010
Provisions 14 11,374 439
Total non-current liabilities 12,620 2,449
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Lease Liabilities 29 1,038 1,089
ii. Trade pavables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 12 35 8
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 12 391,504 137,324
enterprises
iii. Borrowings 13 2406 B
Provisions 14 337 913
Other current liabilities 15 5,541 7.317
Current tax liabilities {net) 22 33,968 "
Total current liabilities 534,909 146,651
Tutal liabilities 547,529 149,100
Total equity and liabilities 801,796 480,777
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial stat |

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Cligrtered Accopntants

Jor and an hehalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
CIN: UT2900KA2018FTC109343

dold-

ohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No, : 222515

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024

Lalit Keshre
Director
DIN 02483558

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024

Director
DIN 5321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024

g
%/
Har'chJ:un RoShan Pive

Compiny Secretary

Membership No, A26472

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

(AN amaues are in INR Lakhs unlexs otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Notes
articula 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
< Revenue from operations S 295809 127.732

Other income 4 18.689 15,781
Total income 314,498 143,513
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses I8 118,803 28,675
Finance costs 19 420 207
Depreciation and amortisation expense 0 012 1,229
Other expenses 21 120,475 63.018
Total expenses 241,710 93,129
Profit before exceptional items and income tax 72,788 50,384
Exceptional item 32 133,968 -
Profit/{loss) before income tax (61,180) 50,384
Tax expense
Current tax

(1) for current year 22 22.758 4459

(ii) relating to earlier years 22 328 -
Deferred tax (credit)/ expense 22 (+.389) 154
Total tax expense 18,697 4,613
Profit/{loss) for the year (79.877) 43,772
Share of net loss of associate accounted for using equity method (net of tax) (608) -
Profit/(loss) for the year (80,545) 45,772
Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans (51) 71
Income tax relating to above 9 {10y
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve 2 2
Other comprehensive income / {loss), net of tax (40) 63
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the vear (80,585) 45,835
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company (BO,494) 45,766
Non-controlling interests {51) 5
Total (80,545) 45,772
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year attributable to;
Shareholders of the Company (40) 63
Non-controlling interests = £
Total (40) 63
Earnings per equity share in INR (Face Value : INR 10/~ per share) 26
Basic earning per share (8.27) 4.70
Diluted eaming per share (8.27) 4.34
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
As per our report of even date attached

far BSR & Co. LLP

Jow and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors

cuntants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
o Number: 101248 W/W-100022 CIN: U72900KA2018FTC 109343

;/_/
ot ol

ohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Bengaluru i
Date: Augunst 27, 2024

Lalit Keshre
Director
DIN 02483558

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024

Harsh Jain
Director
DIN 05321547

Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 27, 2024

Company Secretary
Membership No. A26472

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27. 2024



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement

(AN amonnts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax and exceptional item 72,788 50,384
Adjustments:

Interest income (5.981) (11.385)
Interest on unwinding of commercial paper 1.105) (1,972)
Interest income on non convertible debentures (3,998) (1.105)
Interest on unwinding of security deposits (61) (23)
Interest on inter corparate deposit {2,047) -
Net gain on fair value ehanges (3.202) (625)
Foreign exchange gain on cash and cash equivalent shown separately (161) (722)
Depreciation 2012 1,229
Provision for loss allowance 634 1.051
Reversal of provision for loss allowances (193 (79
Gain on modification of leases (22) -
Finance cost 420 207
Share based pavinents 2,329 1.892
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 59,587 38,832
Change in operating assets and liabilities

{Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (3.913) (2.374)
(Increase)/decrease in other bank balances (191,500) 25,553
(Increase)/decrease in loans (12,080) -
{Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 984 (35,097)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 1,725 3117
Increase/{decrease) in trade payables 253,645 24396
Increase/{decrease) in other current liabilities (1.891) 4,968
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 10,088 298
Cash generated from operations 116,645 59,693
Income taxes paid. net of refund {28,145) (4.911)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 88,500 54,782
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (674) (1.015)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 18 1
Purchase of intangible assets - (30)
Investment in mutual fund (8155324) (205,292)
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund 807,197 211,703
Investment in shares (800) (13.044)
Consideration received on disposal of subsidiaries 230 -
Investment in commercial paper (41.029) {69,009)
Redemption of commercial paper 78,884 19,159
Purchase of treasury bill - (473)
Proceeds from sale of treasury bill 473 -
[nvestment in non convertible debentures (55,000) (40,500)
Redemption of non convertible debentures 15,000 3,000
Purchase consideration paid on acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired (22.524) {4,137)
Bank deposit placed (593,326) (291,599)
Proceeds from bank deposits 008,141 342,566
Intercorporate deposit placed (99,254) -
Redemption of Intercorporate deposit 18,191 -
Interest received 9,292 11,626
Net cash (used) in investing activities {B) (21,105) (37,065)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 2,500 -
Repayment of borrowings (674) -
Repayment for lease liabilities (1,102) (345)
Interest on lease liabilities (298) (194)
Interest on overdraft facilities (51) (7)
Net cash from/(used) in financing activities (C) 375 (546)
Changes on account of conversion of balances fram functional

currency to presentation currency (D} 2 2
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C+D) {2,228) 17,173
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginuning of the financial year 32,883 11,253
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on account of business combination - 3,735
Cash and cash equivalents disposed on sale of subsidary 27) -
Exchange difference on conversion of cash and cash equivalents 161

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 30,788




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement

(AN amownis are in INK Lakhs unless otherwise siated)

Partieulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash on hand " 5

Balances with banks in current accounts 30,788 32.883

Balances per statement of cash flows 30,788 312,883

Notes:
The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect method™ as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) Statement of cash flows.

Material accounting policies {Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these consolidated financial
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP

ered Accoun

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
its Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

cumber: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343 -
o

A Ly 4% .

Rohit Alexander Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain Raos ave
Partner Director Director Company Secretary

1 Registration

Membership No. : 222515

Place: Bengaluru
Date: Aupust 27, 2024

DIN 02483558

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024

DIN 05321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024

Membership Mo, A26472

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 27, 2024




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity

(All amownts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)

A. Share capital

Particulars Equity” Class A Instruments Amount
shares equity shares* entirely equity
in nature
As at 1 April 2022 2,066 - 4,419 6,485
Issue of equity shares - - B
Issue of bonus shares (refer note 10 (e)) - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 2,066 - 4,419 6,485
[ssue of equity shares 7 - 7
Issue of bonus shares (refer note 10 (e)) - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 2,073 - 4,419 6,492
* As the financials are rounded oft in Lakhs the amount in note is "-" | full value of the same is INR 8.800 in the respective years
B. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other Total
comprehensive
Income
Securities Retained Share options Foreign
Premium earnings outstanding account currency
translation
reserve
Asat 1 April 2022 280,203 (12,407) 11,847 - 279,644
Profit for the year - 45,766 - 45,766
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined - 61 - - 61
employee benefit plans (net of tax)
Change in non controlling interest - (2,173) - - (2,173)
Change during the year - - 1,892 2 1,894
As at 31 March 2023 280,203 31,247 13,739 2 325,192
Loss for the year - (80,494) - - (80.494)
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined - (42) - - (42)
employee benefit plans (net of tax)
Disposal of subsidiary - (4) - - (4)
Change in non controlling interest - (1,700) - - (1,700)
Change during the year 2.493 - 2,329 2 4824
As at 31 March 2024 282,696 (50,992) 16,068 4 247,776

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial st ts for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al camannts e b INR Leakhs wnloss othernvise staied)

1. Corporate information

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (“the Company”) is the "Holding Company”, and its subsidiaries and associate together referred as “"Group”. The Cmnpm.t}‘
was incorporated as a private limited company on 9th January 2018 under the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013, During the financial vear ended 31 March 2024, the
erstwhile holding company M/s. Groww Inc,, Delaware. United States of Amierica has merged with the Company. pursuan to NCLT order dated 28 March 2024, (refer note
30 for further details)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is primarily engaged in camying out the business of software designing, maintenance, testing and benchmarking, designing,
developing computer software and solutions, carry on the business of providing. building. organizing of sofiware tools. marketing and innovatization of licensed software.
consultancy services. The company operates the web & app based technology platform. “Groww™ Subsidiaries are primarily engaged in business of stock broking services

2. Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the Group comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS I- Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013,

The Balance Shecet. the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division 11 of
Schedule 111 of the companies Act, as ded from time to time that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the
quit of Ind AS 7 St of Cash Flows,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on acerual hasis, exeept for certain financial assets and liabilities, defined benefit plan
liabilities and share-based payments being measured at fair value,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is i tially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. These financial statements are the Group's first Ind AS financial statements, The Group's financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/(Rs.). which is also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are being authorized for issue in accardance with a resolution of the directors on August 27, 2024,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears
presented. unless otherwise stated,

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements has comprised financial of the Company and its subsidiaries, over which the Group has control, The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power to
direct the relevant activities of the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated fi ial from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities. equity, income and
expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions within the Group are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset,

Vo daterd

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown sep ly in the of profit or loss, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and balance sheet respectively. Statement of profit and loss including Other comprehensive income (OCT) is attributable to the equity holders of the holding Company
and to the non controlling i basis the respective o hip interest and such balance is attributed even if this results in controlling interest is having a deficit balance.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

CAN evmmeenannty are 10 AINK Latkhs unless othervise stated)

2. Material ace ting policies (conti 1)

Associates > .
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Investments in associutes are accounted for using the equity method of accounting .
after initially being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting. the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carmying amount of the investment,

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables. the
Group does not recognise further losses. unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities, Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group,

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the camying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary, Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling i and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equiry.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control or significant infl . any retained i in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carnying-amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate or financial asset, In addition. any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Details of subsidaries
Following subsidiary companies and associate entities have been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

Name of the entity Relationship Country of % of voting power
Incorporation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Subsidiary India 99.99% 99.99%
Nextbillion Technology Private Limirted)
Groww IFSC Private Limited Step Down Subsidiary India 99.99% 99.99%
Groww Asset Managemem Limited (Formerly known as Step Down Subsidiary India 99.99% =
Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Groww Trustee Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Step Down Subsidiay India 99.99% -
Trustee Company Limited)
Neobillion Fintech Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% 100%
Groww Serv Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% 100%
Billioublocks Finserv Private Limited Subsidiary Iudia 100% 100%%
Groww Pay Service Private Limited Subsidiary India 100% 100%
Groww AA Private Limited (upto 20 June 2023) Subsidiary India - 100%
Groww lusurance Broking Private Liinited Subsidiary India 100% 100%
Finmeuts Tech Private Limited (Formerly koow as Subsidiary Tudia 100% 100%
Finvautage Investment Adviser Private Limited)
Groww Creditserv Teclmology Private Limited (Company Subsidiary India 100% -

was associate for part of the year refer note 26)




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AN amounts are in INR Lakhy wnless othenvise stled)
2. Material accounting policies (continued)
a. Property, plant and equipment

i Rec itiern and ement

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, and directly
attmibutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at
each reporting date are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and installation is completed and
assets are ready for its intended use.

Items of Preperty. plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable value
and are shown ly in the fi ial st if any,

il.  Depreciution

Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis (changed from written down value basis followed in earlier financial vears)
using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives specified in Schedule I of the Act.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Computers, laptops and peripherals 3 years
Fumitures & fixtures 10 years
Office equipments 5 years
Networking equipments 6 years

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date of
disposal. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and changes
if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis,

Improvements to leasehold premises are amortised over the lease term or useful lives of the assets. whichever is lower.
#L De-recognition

The camrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derccognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal,
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition, disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment are r d as the diffi b the net disp
proceeds and the camrying amount of the asset and are recognised net, within *Other Income™” or “Other Expenses”, as the case mavbe. in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year of derecognition, disposal or retirement.

b. Intangible assets
i Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow
to the Group, Intangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. The useful life of these software is
estimated at 10 years with zero residual value and ficense is estimated as indefinite life accordingly tested for impaimment annually.

il.  Amaortisation

Amortisation is provided for software using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible assets over their estimated usefis] lives and is included in the statement of
profit and loss.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

CAl vty are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. Material acc ing policies (conti 1)

c. Revenue fromn contracts with customers

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS
L15, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current
revete recognition guidance found within Ind ASs of accounting on accrual basis, Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based an a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115;

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rghts and obligations and sets owt
the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentify perfonmance obligations in the contract: A perfornance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Detennine the transaction price; The ion price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
P P E g P
goods or services to a customer, excludi collected on behalf of third parties,

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance abligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each perfonmance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying
each performance obligation,

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue from the following sources:

(a) Income from tech platform services, support services and fees and commission income is recognised upon completion of services, in accordance with the terms of
contract.

(b} Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services on a trade date basis, in accordance with the terms of contract. There is only one
performance obligation of execution of the trade and settlement of the transaction which is satisfied at a point in time,

(c) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method to the pross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets
clasified as measured at FVTPL,

{d} Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are treated as labilities and adjusted against billing as per tenms of the contract.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

TAN amonnts are in INE Lakhys unfesy othervive steived)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

d. Financial instruments &

i Date of Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

it. Initiaf Measurement

Financial assets and linbilities. with the exception of loans. debt securities. deposits and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instmunent. Recopnised financial instruments are i fally measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities. as

“appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly atributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

it Classification and Subsequent Measuremont
A. Financial assets

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where approprate, the Group classifies and measures financial
assets in the following categories ;

a) Amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value through profit or loss
{FVTPL):
* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to colleet contractual cash flows ('Asset held to collect contractual cash flows"): and
» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI') on the principal amount
outstanding.
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate ("EIR") method, Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

The EIR method is a method of caleulating the amontised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant perod. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

b} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the assets, (‘Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model'} and contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently
measured at FVOCL Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are gnised in Other Comprehensive Income (*OCI"), except interest / dividend income

which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are subsequently ferred to the of profit and loss in case of debt instruments however. in case
of equity instruments it will be directly transferred to reserves. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impainnent assessment.

¢} Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or either designated, are
measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. The Group records investments in equity instruments and mutual funds at FVTPL,




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(el converanes eve in INR Lakhs uniess otherwive siated)
2. Material accounting policies (continued)

B. Financial liahilitics
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial lability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equity Instrument - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group is recognised at the proceeds received, net of directly atributable transaction costs,

(1) Financial Liabilities Financial liabilities are measured at amontised cost, The carmying amounts are initially recogmised at fair value and subsequently determined
based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recopnised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is also recognised in profit or loss.
The Group does not have any financial liability which are measured at FVTPL,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use
or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques. as summarised below:

Level 1 : Those where the mputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the
measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quates available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period
of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 : Those that include one or more unabservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

Based on the Group’s business model for managing the investments, the Group has classified its investments and securities for trade at FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries is
carried at deemed cost (previous GAAP carrying amount) as per Ind AS 27.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables, the carrying amount approximates the fair value due to
short maturity of these instruments.

iv. Reclussification:
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line or in the period the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets. Financial liabilities are not reclassified,

v. Derecognition:
(A} A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when;
* The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the
Group has neither ferred nor retai | ially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

3

If the Group neither nor retains sul ially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amount it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the camying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised)
and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and {ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been

gnised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured at FVOCI).
(B) A financial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial lability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

vi, Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable rght
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(AN amonnty are in INR Lakhs wnless othenvise statedy
2. Material accounting policies (continued)

- vil. Impairment of financial assets: =
A Trude receivables
The Group applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all rade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impainment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on average of historical loss rate adjusted to reflect current and available forward looking information affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

B. Other Financial Assets )
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

e. Employee Benefits
i Share-term employee henefits
Short-term employee benefits include salaties and short-term bonus. A liability is recognised if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation ta pay this as

a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Group.

i, Gratuity
Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, The same
is payable at the time of separation from the Group or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vest after five years of continious service.

The Group's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is caleulated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have eamed in retum for their service in the current and prior period. Such benefit is discounted to detennine its present value, and the fair value
of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on acwarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises each period
of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for detenmining the present value are based on the market vields on

Govemment Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

i Provident fund

The contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan. The Group has na obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.
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(AN amonnts are in INR Lakls wiless otherise stated)

2. Material ace ing policies (conti 1)
v, Share based payment arrangements

The cost of equity settled share-based payment transactions with emplovees of Group is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using option pricing model at
the date on which the options are granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions,

The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recopnition of a corresponding change in share options outstanding account,
v Lang term emplayee henefits

The long term emplovee benefits is measured by reference to the fair value of the benefits using generally accepted valuation methodologies which takes into account
performance based conditions subject to continuous service,

f. Borrowing costs

Expenses related to borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which ily take a sul ial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The difference between the discounted amount mobilised
and redemption value of commereial papers is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the instrument using the EIR.

g. Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of revenue
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreig y are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
when the fair value was determined. Non-mouetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

h. Leases

The d ination of whether an an is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the of the arrang and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Group assesses whether a
contract contains a lease. at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Group assess whether (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified assets: (if) the Group has sul ially all the ic benefits from use of the assets through the penod of the lease and (1ii) the Group has

the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 month or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-tenm and low value leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straipht-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or tenminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when
it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the
lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight line method from the date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of Aght-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Group measures the lease lability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. If that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease liabilities and ROU asset has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.
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2. Material accounting policies (continued)

i. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recopnised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable esti of the of the obligation. Provisions are ¢ d at the best esti of the expenditure required to
seitle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows {representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to effect current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes forming part of financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements. Contingent liabilities are recognised when there is possible obligation arising from past events. the existence of which will be conf'nned only by the
occurence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the conirol of the Group.

j- Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or in OCI,

(i} Current Tux

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act. 196 1. Current tax comprises the
expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous vears. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items gnised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity, Manag: periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to intery ion and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it intends to realise the asset
and settle the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

(it} Deferred Tux

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements,

Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty of its
realisation. supported by convincing evidence,

Deferred tax assets on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Shect date, Changes in deferred
tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same goveming taxation laws.
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(Al oty are in INR Lakhs wnless othervise stated)

2. Material ace ing policies (conti 1)

k. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in current accounts, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily conventible to known amounts of eash and which are subject to an i ificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents cash and short-tenn deposits are considered integral part of the Group's cash management,

l. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impainnent loss
15 reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impainment loss had previously been
recognised.

An asset’s recoveralle amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use, The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from ather assets ar groups of assets. Where the carmying amount of an
asset or OGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price. recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used.

m. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM™) to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM is reviewing the operations of the Group as basis operating segment. The Board of Directors who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments have been identified as the CODM.

n. Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acqui

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities d in a busi i are d initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. When the Company acquires a
business, it assess the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation. In accordance with contractual tenms, economic circumstances,
and pertinent conditions as at acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired and attributable to
the owners of the Company is recorded as goodwill. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at the
acquisition date fair value and the amount of a non-controlling interest in the acquire. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business acquisition are expensed as
and when meurred. Any contingent consideration payable is i at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration
are recognised in Standalone § of Profit and Loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is notr 1 and subseq il is accounted for
within equity,

ition method as at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Company.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.
If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropniate.

o. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit/loss atributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year, Diluted eamings per equity share have been computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity share holders after giving
impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares owstanding during the
period/vear. except where the results are anti-dilutive,

p.  Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.
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(AN amounty are in INR Lakhis unless othervise stoted)

2. Material ac ing policies {conti 1)

q. Use of estimates and jud

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the wement make esti and assumptions that affiect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future vears. In particular, infonmation about areas of
significant estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have a sipnificant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
are included below:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recopnised prospectively,

Infonmation about ptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the following notes:

(1) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property. plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may change
due to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation
and amortisation charges.

{ii} Recognition und measurement of defined benefit oblipations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate. trends in salary
esealation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on govermnment bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation
and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to ¢l in these i

(ifi} Fuir value of financial instruments

Financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113. Being a critical estimate, Jjudgement is exercised
to determine the carrying values, The fair value of financial instruments that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined at fair values assessed based on
recent transactions entered into with third parties, based on valuation done by external appraisers etc., as applicable.

(iv) Expected credit lossex on financial assets
The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured at amortized cost, At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether

financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is *credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the fi ial asset have d

{v) Deferred Tux
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their

respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences could be utilized, Further details are disclosed in Note 20,

(vi) Pravision and contingencies

The gnition and of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions,

{vii} Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share based payment requires detenmination of the most appropriate valuation model, The estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and
maodels used for estimating fair value for share based payments transactions are discussed in Note 27 "Employee stock option plan” (ESOP).
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(AN amonnts are tn INR Lakhs unless othenvive stuivd)

2. Material ace ing policies ( inued)
{viti) Leases -
In determining whether an arrangement is. or contains a lease is based on the sul of the arrang at the inception of the lease. The arangement is, or contains, a

lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the amrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specified i the arrangement,

r. Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”™) notifies new standards or diments tw the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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4 Non- Current Investments

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non Current

Investment in Equity Shares at fair value through Comprehensive Income:
Fourdeyreewater Capital Private Limited

[31 March 2024 - 1 (31 March 2023: 1) Equity shares of Re. 10/~ each]

Digiotech Solutions Private Limited 1,000 1,000
[31 March 2024 - 1,834 (3] March 2023° 1,834) Equity shares of Re 1/~ each)

AMC Repo Clearimg Lunited 5 %
[31 March 2024 - 48,600 (31 March 2023 Nil) Equity shares of Rs [0/ each]

MF Utilities India Private Linuted 20 -
[31 March 2024 - 5,00.000 (31 March 2023 Nil) Equity shares of Re 1/ cach]

Investment in Preference Shares at fair value through Comprehensive Income: -

Fourdegreewater Capital Private Limied 803 803
[31 March 2024 - 627 (31 March 2023; 627) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Re 20/- each]

Digiotech Solutions Private Lumited 9,500 9,500
[3T March 2024 - 13,935 (31 March 2023 13.935) Compulsory convertible prefi shares of Re. 1/- each]

Bigital Technologies Private Limited T00 700
[31 March 2024 - 20,295 (31 March 2023: 20,295) Compulsory convertible preference shares of Re. 10/~ each]

Hyperface Technologies Pte. Ltd. 1.039 1.039
[31 March 2024 - 48,144 (31 March 2023: 48,144) Class A preference shares of USD 0.0001/- each]

Iunosi Systems Private Lumited 800 -
[31 March 2024 - 2,301 (31 March 2023: Nil) Compulsary ible prefe shares of Re. 10/- each]

Measured at amortised cost - quoted

Investment in non convertible debentures - mare than 12 months remaining maturity 37,500 22,500
Total Investments 71.368 35,543

N

Current Investient

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Measured af fair value through profit or loss - quoted

Investment in mutual funds 31,063 14,981
Investment in commercial Papers - less than 12 months remaining maturity - 4,984
Measured at amortised cost - quoted

Investment in commercial Papers - less than 12 months remaining maturity 19,595 51,866
Investment in non convertible debentures 20,000 15,000
Investment in treasury bills - 473
Total Investments 70,658 87304
Aguregate amount of unquoted investment - -
Aggregate amount of quoted investment 70,658 87,304
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6 Trade receivabies

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Trade receivables
Unsecured, Considered good 6,940 3622
Unsecured, Considered doubtful 357 331
Lass Allowance
Unsecured. Considered sond (357) (351)
Net Trade receivables 6,940 3.622

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or others officers of the Company either severally or jomtly with any other person nor any trade or other recervable are due from finns or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member; except as disclosed in note 27

Trade Receivables Ageing

Particulars ' QOutstanding as at 31 March 2024 for following periods from date of transaction Total
Less than 6 month | 6 months - 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 4,490 - - - - 4,490
(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credii impaired 64 65 152 36 30 357
Less: Loss allowance (357)
Add: Unbilled revenue 2.450
Total 6.940
Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for following periods from date of transaction Taotal
Less than 6 month | 6 months - 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years
(1} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 2,096 46 B7 - - 2229
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired 247 20 44 28 12 351
Less: Loss allowanee (351)
Add: Unbilled revenue 1.393
Total 3.622

TA Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
31 March 2024 3] I\Ii_lrrl‘h 2023
Balances with hanks
- In current aceounts 30,788 32,883
Cash on hand = =
Total Ca d cash equivalents 30,788 32.883

“ As the financials are rounded off in Lakhs the amount in note is "=", full value of the same is INR 33,339 (31 March 2023 : 32,905)




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial stat nts for the vear ended 31 March 2024

CAN cmvonnes wre iy INE Lekhs unless otherwive stated)

TB Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents

Asat Agat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bank Deposits - Less than 12 months oniginal maturity™ 323417 130,888
Deposits with banks held against guarantee 10,000 800
Dieposits with NBFC's - Less than 12 months original matunty 10.000 10.000
Tutal 343417 141.688
8A Loans
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-carrent
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans y 2 43,550 -
Less: Impainment loss all on loans (T66) -
Total 44.784 -
Current
(Unsecured, considered pood)
Loans 27482 -
Less: Impairment loss allowance on loans {557) -
Taotal 26,925 -
8B Other financial assets
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Nan-current
(Unsecured, considered pood)
Rental and security deposits 770 0648
Security deposit with exchanges/depositories 178 226
Bank deposits - having remaining maturity of more than 12 months* 20 34
Deposits with NBFC's - having remaining maturity of more than 12 months - 10,000
Interest accrued on deposits 2,484 534
Total 3,452 11.441
Current
(Unsecured, constdered good)
Bank deposits - having remaining maturity of less than 12 months* 94,304 124,009
Deposits with NBFC's - having remaining maturity of less than 12 months 10,000 -
Advance to employees 99 31
Recervable from payment aggregators 4,909 46
Intercorporate Deposit 32,500 -
Interest acerued on deposits 7,832 5,158
Receivable from related parties - 16
Others 10 -
Total 149,655 129.678

* Fixed deposits with Banks have been lien marked with clearing corporations amounted to INR 72,324 (March 31, 2023: 88,125). Further, fixed deposits with Banks have been placed as
collateral security against bank overdraft facility amounted to INR 23,300 . (March 31, 2023: 14,000) of which INR 25,030 (INR 15,030 i.e 90% of INR 16,700 fixed deposits, INR. 1,000 ie
100% of INR 1,000 fixed deposits, INR 570 i.e. 95% of INR 600 and INR 10,000 i.e 200% of INR 5000 intra day fixed deposits) can be utilized for overdraft facility.

9 Other assets
As at Asat

31 March 2024 3 ll!_a_n‘.‘h 2023
Current
(Unsecured, considered goud)
Balanees with government authorities 1,074 2,968
Prepaid expenses 1,587 923
Advances to suppliers 601 988
Others 3 ©
{(Unsecured, considercd doubtful)
Advances to suppliers 3 2
Less: Loss Allowance on advance to suppliers (6) (24)

Tatal 3.265 4879
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10 Share capital

As at 31 March 2024 Asat 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Authorised share capital

Equity Shares N

Equity Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023, INR 10/-) 73,000,000 7.500 75,000,000 7,500
Class A Equity Shares of INR 10/- (11 March 2023: INR 10/-)* 1000 - 1,000 -
Instruments entirely equily in natire

Preference Shares of INR 10/ (31 March 2023 INR 10/-)" 73,000,000 7,500 75,000,000 7.500

150,001,000 15,000 150,001,000 15,000

" Purswant o the merger order duted 28 March 2024, the board af directors has approved for the increase in anthorised share cupitet! vieke rexedution deted 29 March 2024, The
commpeny hes filed the Form SH-" witls the ministey of eorporare affairs on 22 April 2024 for increase in authorised share capiral.
Jsl . Y ef et ! / ]

Issued, subscribed and puid-up shure capital (shares pending issuance) **

Equity Shares

Equity Shares of INR 10/~ (31 March 2023: INR 10/) 20,732,150 2073 20,659,898 2,066
Class A Equity Shares of INR 10/ (31 March 2023; INR 10/} 880 - 830 -
20,733,030 2.073 20,660,778 2,066
Instraments entively equity in nature
Series A-1 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 10,446,663 1,045 10,446,663 1,045
INR 104 (31 March 2023 INR 10/}
Series A-2 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 509,299 51 509,299 51
INR 10/~ (31 March 2023; INR 10/-)
Series A-3 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 1,842 500 184 1,842,500 184
INR 10/- (31 March 2023; TNR 10/-)
Series A-4 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 2,653,200 265 2,653,200 265
INR 10/- (31 March 2023 INR 10/-)
Series B 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10,820,404 1,082 10,820,404 1,082
10/= (31 March 2023; INR 10/-)
Series C-1 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 6,411,899 641 6,411,899 A3
INR 10/ (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
Series C-2 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of 542,340 54 542,340 54
INR 10/~ (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
Series D 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of INR 4,918,507 492 4918507 492
10/= (31 March 2023, INR 10/)
Series E 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of INR 6,045,171 605 6,045,171 505
[0/ (31 March 2023: INR 10/-)
44,189,983 4,419 44,189,983 4,419
64,923,013 6,492 64,850,761 6,485

** Mursuant to the merger order dated 28th March 2024, the equity sharex of the Company held by Groww Inc, USA stand cancelled. The board of directors has approved for the
allutment uf share capital vide resohition dated ¥ May 2024 which iy diselosed av pending issuance ax on 31 March 2024, The company has filed the Form PAS-3 with the
minisiry of corparate affairs on 29 May 2024 for the allotment of share capital. (Refer note 30)

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the b

g and at the end of the reporting vear

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares®
At the commencement of the year 20,659 898 2,066 20,659,898 2,066
Add : Issued during the vear 72,252 s . .
At the end of the vear 20,731,150 2,073 20,659,898 2,066
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number Amount” Number Amount”
Class A equity shares*®
At the commencement of the year BRO - R80 -
Add : Tssued duning the vear - - = R
At the end of the vear 880 - 880 -

* As the financials are rounded off in Lakhs the amount in note is "-" . full value of the same is INR. 8 800 in the respective years

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Compulsory convertible preference shares
At the commencement of the vear 44,189,983 4,419 44,189 983 4419
Add : Issued durine the vear - . - >
At the end of the vear 44,189,983 4419 44,189,983 4.419

* As on 27 March 2023 pursuant to Section 61 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has consolidated 10 equity shares of INR | each into 1 equity share of INR. 10 each.
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(b}

(e)

Terms/rights attached to equity shares and preference shares

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached 1o equity shares

Equity shares are ranked equaliy with regard to dividend and share in the Company’s residual assets, The equity shareholders are entitled o receive dividend as declared from time
to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder are in propartion to #s share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of ail preferential amounts in
proportion to the number of equity shares held

Rights. preferences and restrictions attached to Class A equity shares

The holders of the Cluss A Equity Shares shall have the same rights, privileges, limitations, and restrictions pari-passu with the holder of Equity Shares and shall enjoy all other
rights such as bonus shares, nights shares ete. whiich the holders of Equity Shares are entitled to subject to the voting rights

Class A Equity Shareholders shall carry such voting rights such that all Class A Equity Shares, shall in aggregate, entitle the holders of all Class A Equity Shares, to voting rights
(rounded down 1o the nearest whole number) equal to $1% (eighty one percent) of all issued and outstanding Equity Shares, Class A Equity Shares and comulative compulsory
preference shares, on an as-if converted basis

The aggregate voting rights of all Class A Equity Shares held by a holder of Class A Equity Shares shall automatically, withaut any further action, stand reduced 1o 0 {zero) votes,
such that the relevant Class A Equity Shares shall not have any voting rights. immediately upon the earlier of, (a) the date of Transfer of any Class A Equity Skares to any Person by
a halder of Class A Equity Shares; (b) the date on which such holder of Class A Equity Shares ceases providing services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries as an officer,
Director or employee; or (c) the date of death or permanent incapacity of any individual registered as a holder of Class A Equity Shares,

Rights, preferences end restrictions attached to preference shares
Compulsorily convertible preference shares - Series A-1, A-2, A-3, A-4, B, C-1,C-2, D, E

Any Series A-1 Preference Shares, Series A-2 Preference Shares, Series A-3 Preference Shares, Series A-4 Preference Shares, Series B Preference Shares, the Sertes C-1, Series C-
2 Preference Shares, the Series D Preference Shares and the Series E Prefi Shares (collectively referred to as “Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares™), issued to by the
Company, if not converted at any time prior to 20 (Twenty) years from the date of issuance of the same, shall automatically convert into Equity Shares on the (a) latest permissible
date prior to the issue of Shares to the public in connection with the occurrence of an Initial Public Offer (IPQ) under Applicable Law, or (b} day immediately preceding the
campletion of 20 (Twenty) years from the date of issuance of the same.

id

The Preft ¢ Shareholders of the Comy for their action or at any ing of Shareholders of the Company, each holder of outstanding Preference Shares shall
be entitled to cast the number of votes equal 1o the number of Equity Shares into which the Preference Shares held by such holder are convertible as of the record date for
determining Shareholders entitled to vote on such matter.

Any of the rights, powers, preferences and other terms of a series of Preference Shares may be waived on behalf of all holders of such series of Preference Shares by the affirmative
written: consent or vote of the holders of atleast a majority of shares
of such series of Preference Shares then outstanding

Each Preference Share is issued at a preferential dividend rate of 0.00001% (Zero point Zero Zero Zero Zero One percent) per annum. The Dividend is non-cumulative and shall
not acerue whether or not paid, The Dividend shall be due only when declared by the Board in compliance with Applicable Law

The holders of the Preference Shares shall have conversion rights as follows (the “Conversion Rights”). Each share of Preference Shares shall be convertible, at the option of the
holder thereof, at any time and from time to time, and without the pay of additional ideration by the holder thereof, into such number of fully paid Equity Shares as is
determined by dividing the applicable Original Issue Price by the applicable Preferred Conversion Price (as defined below) i effect at the time of conversion. Each such initial
Preferred Conversion Price, and the rate at which Preference Shares may be converted into Equity Shares, shall be subject to adjustment for Diluting Issues, Share Splits and
Consolidations, other dividends and distributi merger or isati

Mandatory conversion:

Upon either (a) prior to the filing of red herring prospectus in connection with an IPO, or (b) the vote ar written consent of the Requisite Holders and, for conversion of any series
of the Preference Shares, the vete or written consent, of the halders of at least majarity of the outstanding shares of such series of the Preference Shares as required under
Applicable Law, voting as a separate class (such date of filing of the red herring prospectus or the date and time specified in such vote or written consent is referred to herein as the
“Mandatory Conversion Time™), then (i) all outstanding Preference Shares shall automatically be converted into Equity Shares, at the then effective conversion rate as calculated
pursuant to Part B{a)(i)A of Schedule 5 and (ii) such shares may not be reissued by the Company.

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

T Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding

held held
Equity shares
Lalit Keshre 5,589,547 27% 3,589,547 27%
Harsh Jain 3,926,146 19% 3,926,146 19%
Neeraj Singh 3,586,469 17% 1,586,469 17%
Ishan Bansal 2,404 497 12% 2,404,497 12%
YC Heldings I, LLC 2,093 463 10% 2,093 463 10%
Class A Equity shares
Lalit Keshre 220 25% 220 25%
Harsh Jain 220 25% 220 25%
Neeraj Singh 220 25% 220 25%
Ishan Bansal 220 25% 220 25%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
Peak XV Partners Investments VI-1 (Formerly known as SCI Investments VI-1) 14,681,238 33% 14,681,238 13%
Ribbit Capital V, 1. P, for itself and as nominee for Ribbit Founder Fund W, L.B. 9,866,032 22% 9,866,032 22%
¥ Holdings 11, LLC 6,850,642 16% 6,850,642 16%
Internet Fund V1 Pte, Ltd. 3822170 9% 3,822,170 9%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

The Company has issued bonus shares during the vear ended 31 March 2023 without payment being received in cash in the ratio 1:609, Pursuant to the merger approved by NCLT,
the bonus shares have been restated as if issued from the beginning of earliest reporting period in the ﬁnaru:_ial statements, imespective of the actual date of the bonus 1ssue.
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ITA Other equity

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retained eamings (i) (50,992) il247
Secunities premmm . i) 282,696 - 280,204
Foreign eurrency translation reserve () 4 2
Share based pavinent reserve (1v) 16,008 13,739
Total other equity 247,776 325,192
(i) Retained earnings
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 31,247 (12.407)
Add: Profit/{loss) during the vear {80.494) 45,766
Add/(Less): Change in non contralling mterest (1,700} (2.173)
Add/(Less): Disposal of subsidiary ; ) -
L Add: Reineasurement vains/{losses) on defined emplovee benefit plans {net of tax) {42) 6l
Closing balance (50,992} 31.247
(ii) Securities preninm
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 280,203 280,203
Add: Premium received on issue of equity shares 2.493 -
Closing balance 282,696 280,203
(iti)_Foreign currency translation reserve
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 2 -
Add: Chanue during the year 2 2
Closing balance 4 2
(11} Share options outstanding account
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 13,739 11,847
Add: Change during the vear 2329 1,892
Closing balance 16,068 13,739
Nature and purpose of reserves
{i) Retained earnings:
The eumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Group is recognised and accumulated under the heading "Retained Eamings”. At the end of the year, the profit
(loss) after tax 15 transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained eamings
(ii) Securities premium:
Seeurities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilsed only for limited purpose in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve
Foreign currency lation reserve rep | on of conversion of functional curreney to presentation currency.
(iv) Share options outstanding account:
It represents fair value of the employee stock option plan. These option are issued by the Company to the emplayees of the C pany and its subsidiary comy
11B Mon-controlling interests (NCI)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance - 1,958
Add: Pursuant to business combination 9,535 -
Add: Profit/(loss) during the year (51) 5
Add/Less; Change in NCI (9.484) (1.963)

Closing balance
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12 Trade pavables

Particulars e FEpe
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023

Current .
Tatal outstandimg dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 35 g
Total vutstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Pavabie to related party Gl 460 -
- Payable to other than related party 330,104 137,324
Total trade pavables 391.619 137,332
Trade Payables Ageing

Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 for following periods from date of Total

transaction
Less than | vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears Mare than 3 vears

(i) MSME 56 - - - 55
(it} Others 371,494 11 3 5 371,508
Add: Unbilled 20,056
Taotal 391,619

Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for following periods from date of Total

transaction
Less than | vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 years
(i) MSME 8 - . - 8
(i1) Others 127.633 5 - - 127,638
Add: Unbilled 9.686
Total 137,332
13 Borrowings
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current
Term loan from fi ial institution 2,406 -
Total 2,406 -

Terms of loan:

1. Term loan from Financial Institutions is payable on monthly mstallments and all the amount is repayable within 12 months and carries rate of Interest of 12% payable on monthly basis.

it. Loans from Financials Institutions are secured by specific charge on receivables under fi iny activities of subsidiary of the Company. The subsidiary of the Company has maintained the
required security cover with respect to its secured horrowings.

i, Term Loans were used fully for the purpose for which the same were obtained.
1v. There were no default in the repayment of horrowings,
v. Peniodic statements of securities filed with the lending institutions are as per the books of accounts,

14 Provisions
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Non-current
Provision for gratuity 757 439
Provision for long term emplovee benefi 10,617 -
Total 11,374 439
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Provision for gratuity 104 43
Provision for compensated ahsences - 6
Provision for expected credit loss 233 864
Total 337 913
Taotal Provisions 11,711 1,352

15 Other liabilities

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Statutory dues payable 5.541 7317

Total other current liabilities 5,541 7317




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

(AW cmonnts are iy ANR Lkl unless otherwise siated)

16 Revenue from operations

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(a) Sale of services

Fees and commission income 273,588 122,611
Tech platform and support charges 830 -
(b) Interest income 2,394 -
(¢) Other operating revenue
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks earmarked with stock exchange 18977 5,121
Total revenue i‘ruE] operations 295,809 127,732
Disaggregation of Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the vear ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Geographical markets

Domestic 295.809 127.732
295,809 127,732

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 295 809 127,732
295,809 127,732

Other income

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost;

(i) Fixed deposits with banks from treasury funds 5,981 11,385

(ii} Interest on unwinding of commercial paper 3,105 1,972

(iii}) Interest income on non convertible debentures 3,998 1,105

(iv) Interest on unwinding of security deposits 6l 23

(vi) Interest on inter corporate deposit 2,047 -
Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
on investments

(i) Realised gain on sale of mutual fund 2,211 551

(ii) Unrealised gain on mutual fund 991 74
Foreign exchange gain (net) 187 506
Reversal of provision for loss allowance 19 79
Interest on income tax refund 21 51
Rental income on sub-lease - 8
Profit on disposal of investment in subsidiary 4 -
Gain on modification of leases 22 -
Miscellaneous income 42 27
Taotal other income 18,689 15,781
Employee benefit expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Salaries, allowances and bonus 114,851 25443
Contribution to provident and other funds 3198 303
Share based payments 2,067 1,752
Staff welfare expenses 1,189 881
Gratuity 298 296
Total emplovee benefit expenses 118,803 28,675
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19 Finance costs

2

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest on lease liabilities 298 200
Interest on overdraft facility il 7
Interest on borrowings from financial institutions 71 -
Total finance costs 420 207
20 Depreciation and amortisation expense
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment picia 558
Amortisation on intangible assets 5 3
Depreciation on right of use assets 1.250 668
Total depreciation and amrotisation expense 2,012 1,229
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Marketing and business promotion expenses 44,892 24 383
Software, server and technology expenses 26,415 13,523
Transaction and other related charges 41,206 21,910
Professional and consulting charges 2,303 1,080
Rent and maintenance 747 528
Travelling and convevance expenses 348 180
Communication expenses 99 73
Rates and taxes 3359 393
Payments to auditors
- Statutory audit 79 52
- Tax audit 6 4
- Interim audit 24 ”
- Others 10 -
Provision for loss allowance 628 864
Director's sitting fee 36 9
Corpaorate social responsibility 120 1
Mutual fund expenses 114 -
Miscellaneous expenses 69 18
Total other expenses 120,475 63,018
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22 Income Taxes

A. Amount recognised in profit or loss statement

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Current tax

(1} for current Year 22758 4,459
(i1} relating to earlier Years 328 -
Total current tax expense 23,086 4,459

Deferred tux

In respect of current period {4,389) 154
Total deferred tax expense (4,389) 154
Income tax expense reported in the st of Profit and Loss 18,697 4,613

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended

For the year ended

Sl 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit before share of profit in equity accounted investees and tax 72,788 50,384
Tax at Indian tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2023 : 25.168%) 18,319 12,681
Effect of
Tax on unrecognised tax losses - (8,218)
Losses for which deferred tax is not recognised 763 529
Tax on expense not tax deductible {498) 29
Items for which deferred tax 15 not recognised* - (162)
Tax loss of different jurisdiction - (225}
Tax relating to earlier vears 328 -
Others (215) (i)
Total tax expense 18,698 4,623

* Note: The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset for the vear ended 31 March 2023 considering the impact of Section 79 of The Income Tax Act, 1961 upon completion of the

amalgamation. {Refer Note 32 for details)

C. Current tax

Particulars idek Ayde
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax asset (net) 6,544 1,577
Current tax liabilities (net) (133,968) -
D. Deferred Tax
As at Asat

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealised gain on securities carried at fair value through profit or loss / other comprehensive income 68 9
Expenses allowed upfront in tax s -
Total deferred tax liabilities T0 9
Deferred tax assets

Property plant & equipment 16 0
Lease 91 7
Disallowance of expenses 3,990 88
Deferred ncome offered to tax 230 -
On carry forward of losses 171 -
Total deferred tax assets 4,498 95
Net deferred tax asset 4,428 87
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22 Income Taxes (continued)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities): A

Movement of deferred tax assets / liabilities presented in the balance sheet

Asat Pursuant to business  Recognised in Asat

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Recognised in OCI

01 April 2023 combination profit or loss 31 March 2024
Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised gain on securities carried at
fair value through profit or loss / other comprehensive income (%) (81) 2 - (68)
Expenses allowed upfront in tax - - {2) - {2}
Gross deferred tax liabilities (9 (81) 20 - (70)
Deferred tax assets on:
Property plant & Equipment 5 0 - 16 . - 16
Lease 7 - 84 - 9]
Disallowance of Expenses £8 2 3.891 9 3.990
Disallowance under Section 35DD of the Income Tax Act,1961 - 23 (23) - -
Deferred income offered to tax - - 230 - 230
On carry forward of losses - - 171 - 171
Gross deferred tax assets 95 25 4369 9 4,498
Net deferred tax assets 86 (57) 4,389 9 4,428
For the year ended 31 March 2023 01 ;\’;ill"z{ln I‘nrsluanf !'.o IT:I::]MSS Re;‘;_i";?;:l;: Recognised in OCI 31 M:::E:Z!HS
Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised pain on securities carried at
fair value through profit or loss / other comprehensive income (23) * 14 - (9)
Graoss deferred tax liabilities (23) - 14 - (%)
Deferred tax assets on:
Propenty plant & Equipment i 2y 0 R
Lease - - i - 7
Disallowance of Expenses 7 - 6 10 88
On carry forward of losses 201 - (201) - -
Gross deferred tax assets 273 - (188) 10 95
Net deferred tax assets 250 - (174) 10 87
E. Tax losses carried forward
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

(ross Amount Expiry Date Gross Amount Expiry Date
Tax losses (business losses) 9,752 Various 5,084 Various
F. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Gross Amount Unrecognised  Gross A t Unrecognised tax
tax effect effect

Tax losses (business losses) 9,074 2,284 5,084 1,280

Total unrecognised deferred tax assets 9,074 2,284 5,084 1,280
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23 Employee benefit obligations

Defined Contribution Plan ¥
Contribution are made to Provident fund in India for employees. The contributions are made to registered Provident fund administered by the Government. The expenses recognised
during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 398 for the vear ended March 31. 2024 (INR 303 for the year ended March 31, 2023),

Defined benefit plans
The Group provides for gratuity for employces in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for

gratuity. The amount of grawity payable on reti f is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for
the number of years of service,
Particulars Asat 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Current Non-current Current Nan-current
Compensated absences - & 6 X
Gratuity 104 757 43 439
Total emplovee benefit obligations 104 757 49 439

Defined benfit plans

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

i)

diia As at As at

Description

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO} at beginning of year 482 256
Addition pursuant to business combination 3t -
Current service cost 264 262
Past service cost - 18
Interest cost 34 17
Actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a) changes in demographi pti 5 (86)
b) changes in financial assumptions 4 [¢3]
¢) experience adjustments 48 24
Benefits paid {2) )
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at vear end 861 482
Expenses recognised during the year
Deserinti For the year ended  For the vear ended

escription

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 204 262
Past service cost - 18
Interest cost 34 17
Expenses recoanised in Profit and loss 298 297

(i) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

For the year ended  For the vear ended

inti
HEREproR 31 March2024 31 March 2023

Acturial Gains/ (Losses) on obligation for the period (51} 71
Net Income / (Expense) for the period recognised in OCI (51) 71
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23 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(iv) Acturial assumptions

Gratuity as on March 31
2024 2023
India Assured Lives  India Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14 Montality 2012-14

Description

Mortality Table (L1C)

Discount rate (p.a) 7.10% - 7.15% 1.25%

Attrition Rate 25.00% - 30.38% 25.00%%
Rate of escalation in salary (p.a) 11% - 12% 11.00%
Retirement age 6l Years 60 Years

(vi) Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

For the year ended  For the year ended

A — 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate ; +1% (41) (27}
Discount rate ; 1% 44 24
Salary escalation rate : +1% iR 21
Salary escalation rate : -1% (37) (24}
Attrition rate: +1% (16) (13)
Attrition rate: -1% 16 9
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other ptions constant, In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of

the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation caleulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the balance sheet,

The Mortality does not have a sigmificant impact on the Liability . hence are not considered a significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of Sensitivity analvsis
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

The expected future contribution and estimated future benefit payments from the fund are as follows

Particulars Gratuity
Expected contribution to the fund during the year ending March 31, 2023 Unfunded
Estimated benefit payments from the fund - Time period (in years)

Within | year 0-55
2 -5 years 6-361
6 -10 years 6-219

Above 10 vear 4-124
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24 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices} or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2024

. Carrying value Fair value
Particulars N Fhasd At LGy Level 1  Level 2 Level 3 Total
costs amount
Financial assets
Investments 31,063 13,868 97,095 142,026 31,063 - 13,868 44,931
Trade receivables - - 6,940 6,940 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 30,788 30,788 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 343417 343,417 - - - -
Loans - - 71,709 71,709 - - . -
Other financial assets - - 153,107 153,107 - - - -
31,063 13,868 703,056 747,987 31.063 - 13.868 44,931
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 391,619 391,619 - - - -
Borrowings = - 2 406 2,406 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 2.284 2,284 - - - -
- - 396,309 396,309 - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars FYTEL, Bl A"'c?];:fed T““;'n':::;"t'"g Level |  Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments 19,965 13,043 89,838 122 847 19,965 - 13,043 33,009
Trade receivables - = 3,622 3,622 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 32,883 32,883 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 141,688 141,688 - - - -
Other financial assets - - 141.119 141,119 - - - -
19,965 13,043 409,150 442,159 19,965 - 13,043 33.009
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 137,332 137,332 - - - -
Other financial liabilities = - 3,099 3,009 " - " -
- - 140,431 140,431 - - - -

For investments measured at FVOCI (Level 3), the Group has considered the fair value as on 31 March, 2024 based on the latest available valuation or most recent market transaction
price.

The Group has not separately disclosed the fair values for financial assets and liabilities other than investments, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the fair
values,
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B Measurement of fair values
Valuation technique used to determine fair values:
Specific valuation technique to value financial instruments like:
i. Use of quoted market prices for financial instruments traded in active markets,
ii. For other financial instruments - discounted cash flow analysis.

C Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
(i) Credit risk:
(ii) Liquidity risk: and
(1ii) Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management
policies are established 10 identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

it. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's
receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including trade receivable. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Group assesses
the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on trade receivables for the vears ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 was INR 357 and INR 351 respectivelv, The reconciliation of allowance
for doubtful trade receivables is as follows:

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the vear 351 178
Changes during the year 34 200
Bad Debts written off’ (28) 27)
Balance at the end of the vear 357 351

One of the subsidiary in the Group has given Performance guarantee for few loans given by the financials partners. For this loans in accordance with Ind AS 37, the company has provided
loss allowance against the guarantee given to these Financial partners,

The subsidiary has in accordance with Ind AS 109 classified the loans as Stage 1, Stage II and Stage III. Based on the Expected Credit loss (ECL) the company has created provision on
total outstanding of the loans for which they have given performance guarantee.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 864 -
Changes during the year (631) 864
Balance at the end of the year 233 864

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit
rating agencies,
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14 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)
itl. Liguidity risk .
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in ing the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The

Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure. as far as possible. that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its labilities when they are due. under both normal and stressed conditions, without
ncurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation,

The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations The Group has managed its liquity and working capital requirements
through cash generated from aperations and through intermitten short term bommowings. The Group has sufficient short term fund based lines. which provides healthy liquidity and these carry highest
credit quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is perceived.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial lisbilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payiments and exclude the
impact of newting agreements,

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2024 Carrying amount 6 months orless Duein6-12 Dueinl-2 vear Due More than
months 2 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 391,619 391619 - - -

Lease liabilities 2.284 656 721 907 -

Borrowings 2406 1.208 1.198 - -
396,309 393,483 1,919 207 -

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2023 Carrying amount 6 months orless  Duein6-12 Duein1-2 year Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 137.332 137.332 - - -
Lease liabilities 3.099 485 603 1.350 659
140,431 137,817 605 1,350 659

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: interest rate risk,
price risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financial assets and liabilities. The Group is not exposed to any significant market
risks.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The interest rate risk can also impact the provision
for retiral benefits. The Group generally utilises fixed rate borrowings and invests in fixed rate deposits, commercial papers, non covertible debentures, etc and therefore not subject to interest rate risk,
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in the market interest rates, The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective
reporting dates.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets
and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee,

The following table shows foreign currency exposures in USD on financial instruments at the end of the reporting period:

i) Foreign Currency Exposure:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
UsD UsD

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable{Rs.) 533 -

Current tax liabilities (Rs.) 133,968 -

Net Total 134,501 -

ii) Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
USD usp

1% Depreciation in INR

Impact on P&L (1,345) -

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
UsDh UsD

1% Appreciation in INR
Impact on P&L 1345 )

v. Capital Management
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, ereditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the busi The Group itors the return on
capital and its objective when ging capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder value,
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15 Contingent liabilities and commitments

s As at As at
ety 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a) Contingent Liabilitics {to the extent not provided for) * E
b) Commitinents
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for : . -
¢} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
-Bank Guarantees given - 800

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

One of the subsidiary in the Group has given Bank guarantee amounting to March 2024 - Nil (March 2023 - INR 800) to the financials parmer towards its performance obligation,

26 Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the vear ended

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Edrnings
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (In INR Lakhs) (B0,494) 45,766

Shares (Refer note 36)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic EPS (In Lakhs) 9,738 9,728
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares 865 827
Weighted average ber of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS (In Lakhs) 10,604 10,555
Basic earnings per share (8.27) 4.70
Diluted earnings per share (8.27) 4.34
Nominal value per share 10 10

27 Related party disclosures
As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures (Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Company are as follows;

A Names of related parties and description of relationship

Name Type

Groww Creditserv Technology Private Limited Enterprises having key management personnel in common (upto 12 April 2023)
Associate company (w.e.f 13 April 2023 to 11 January 2024)

Subsidiary company (w.e.f. 12 January 2024)

Lalit Keshre Key It p |
Harsh Jain Key p 1
Neeraj Singh Key i p 1 (w.e.f. 27 March 2023)
Ishan Bansal Key personnel (w.e.f. 27 March 2023)

B The following tra tions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of b

For the year ended For the year ended

Nature of Transaction Related Party 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Groww Creditsery Technology Private Limited Share based payments - 16

Key management personnel Purchase of equity instruments 11,184 4,163
Sale of equity instruments (230} -
Short term employee benefits 78.802 627
Long term employee benefits 10,600 -
Post employment benefits** 0 i

C  Outstanding balances

As at As at

Relat
Eanticaite M Sy 31 March2024 31 March 2023
Groww Creditserv Technology Private Limited Receivable from related parties - 16
Key managerial personnel Provision for post employment benefits** (62) -

Provision for long tenn employee benefits (10,617) -

Trade payables (61.460) -
**Transactions and balances with key management personnel for the year ended March 31, 2024 is basis allocation for gratuity of key T I | obtained from actuary; March

31, 2023 did not include provisions gratuity as separate details were not available,
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28 Share Based Payments

All the Group's employees approved by the Board. are eligible for being considered for the grant of stock options under Groww Inc 2017 Stock Incentive Plan ("GSIP 2017") administered by the
erstwhile Holding Company

Stack options granted under GSIP 2017 would vest based on the tenns and conditions mentioned in the respective Stock option Grant Notice. The holding company has issued fully vested stock
options and stock options with a vesting period of 12 - 48 months with a cliff of 12 months in graded manner. Vesting of options would be subject 1o continued employment with a Company. The
specific vesting schedule and conditions subject to which vesting would take place would be outlined in the document given to the option grantee at the time of grant of options. The excercise price of
the options granted during the vear is USD 0.27.

For stock options issued under GSIP 2017, the weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $14.50 - $18.96, equivalent average INR is 1,193 - 1,570 (31 March 2023: $18.80 -
$20.22). As at 31 March 2024, the weighted average contractual remaining life of options is 16.11 - 19.54 years,

Pursuant to the filing of the scheme of merger of the Groww Inc with the holding company is approved by the Hon'ble NCLT via merger order dated 28th March 2024, the options of earlier period
have been adjusted for swap ratio as applied to shareholders and have been restated as if they were available of carliest reporting period in the financial statements, irrespective of their actual date.

As per the approval from shareholders of the holding company. GSIP 2017 is replaced by "Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024" (BGV ESOS 2024")
effective from 29th March 2024 which is prepared basis the same terms and conditions as of GSIP 2017 except on the exercise period of the options which is modified to twenty years from existing
ten years and excercise price has been updated 1o Rs 10 for all the options.

Employees were provided option of cash or share based payment altemative for performance bonus. Pursuant to the same, the Group paid performance bonus in the form of stock options amounting
to INR 195 (31 March 2023 - 87) which is included as part of Salaries, allowances, incentives and bonus,

Movement of share options during the financial year:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
8] ling as at the beginning of the year 5.512.800 5.367.234
- Granted 422.542 341912
- Forfeited (99.222) (196,346)
- Excercised (72.253) %
Out: ling as at the end of the vear 5,763.867 5,512,800
Vested as at the year end 4,970,161 4,491,255

Fair value of stock options granted

The fair value of the stock options granted is estimated at the grant date using arm’s length price of the stock options computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the stock options were granted, The inputs used to measure fair values of options granted on the grant date were as follows:

The following table lists the inputs to the option pricing models for the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dividend yield (% p.a.) 0% 0%
Expected volatility (% p.a.) 45% - 47.2%)| 37%-43%
Risk-free i rate (% p.a.) 3.6%-4.6% 2.28% - 4.22%
Expected life of option {vears) 6.50 -7.00 2
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29 Leases

a)

b}

A contract is. or contains. a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,
Cironp ax o fessee
The Group's lease asset classes consist of leases for premises. The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset {ii} the Group has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii} the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease. the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it
is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.

For these short-term and low value leases. the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct
costs, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the date on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

[

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the imcremental

borrowing rate of the Group, Lease labilities are re d with a corresponding adj to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment on
whether it will ise an jon or a ination option,
Lease liability and ROU asset have been sep Iy pr d in the Bal Sheet and lease payments of INR 1,400 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 539 Lakhs) have

been classified as cash flow generated from financing activity.

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reparting period by class

i Leasehold

Particulars

Property
Balance as on Ist April 2023 2,945
Additions 536
Derecognition (206)
Depreciation {1,250)
Balance as on 31 March 2024 2,025

1 I

Particulars Lausehotd

Property
Balance as on 1st Aprl 2022 -
Additions 3,613
Derecognition )
Depreciation (668])
Balance as on 31st March 2023 2,945
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

At the commencement of the year 3.099 £

Additions 517 3438
Reduction in liability (230 -

Accretion of interest 298 200
Payments (1.400) (539)
At the end of the year 2,284 3,099
Current 1,038 1,089
Non-Current 1.246 2,010




Billionbrains Gargpge Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(AN amoitsts are i INR Lokhs wnless othervive sued)

30 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

31

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2024 has been made in the financial statements based on information
received and available with the company. Further, in management's view, the impact of interest, if any. that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('the Act) is not expected to be material.

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Particulars

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.
- Principal amount

- Interest due thereon 3 R
The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the
year

w
o
=)

The amount of mterest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest under this Act

Amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, till actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure, b %

Total outstanding principal dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises included in Trade Payables (Mote 12) 35 8

Segment reporting

The Group does not distinguish revenues, costs and expenses between segments in its intemal reporting, and reports costs and expenses by nature as a whole. The
chief operating decision maker reviews the Consolidated Financial Results when making decisions about allocating resources and assessing perfonmance of the Group
as a whole and hence, the Group has only one reportable segment. The Group operates and its busi as a single seg mainly through the sale of
financial services through the intemet, The Company operates in one geographic segment namely “within India” and hence no separate information for geographic
segment wise disclosure is required.

32 Business Combinations

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group achieved control over Groww Asset Management Limited ("GAMC") and Groww Trustee Limited ("GTL") w.e.f
May 2, 2023, The GAMC principal activity is to act as an investment manager to Groww Mutual Fund ("the Fund”). It is registered with Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI') under SEBI {Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996, It es the in portfolio of the Fund and provides various administrative services to

the Fund and Trustee Company. The GTL 1s acting as trustee for mutual funds,

Particulars GAMC GTL

Fair value of consideration 17,502 60
Fair value of assets received

Cash and cash equivalents 6,555 26
Investments 3,795 -
Trade recievables 3 7
Balances with government authorities 5 -
Current tax assets (net) 24 1
Current tax liabilities (net) (116) n
Deferred tax liability (37) -
Trade payables (123) 2)
Provisions for employee benefits (6) g

| Statutory liabilities {10) (1)
Intangibles-license 3,280 -
Goodwill - residual value 4,152 a0
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32 Business Combinations (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024. the Group achieved control over Groww Creditseny Technology Private Limited ("GCS") w.e.f January 12, 2024, GCS isa
Non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) mainly engaged in providing personal loans and
Consumer durable loans on Digital Lending Platforms.

Particulars Amount

Fair value of consideration 20176

Fair value of assets received

Property, plant and equipment 14

Cash and cash equivalents 11,282

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,000

Leoan Portfolio 60,963

Expected credit loss on Loan Portfolio (894)
Investments 1,003

Interest accrued on investments 29

Balances with government authorities 4

Other financial assets 57

Other current assets 83

Borrowings (52,783)
Trade payables (1,169)
Provisions for employee benefits (25)
Statutory liabilities (105)
Intangibles-license 1,045

Share of net loss of associate accounted for using equity method (668)
(net of tax) adjusted against Goodwill

Goodwill - residual value 4

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company achieved control over Finments Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Finvantage Investment Adviser Private
Limited) w.e.f March 8, 2023. Finments Tech Private Limited shall provide the SaaS based activities and shall develop the technology ecosystem for Groww
Companies and as well as other Companies in India.

Particulars Amount Amount

Assets taken over
Cash & Cash Equivalents 26
[nvestments 1 27

Liabilities taken over
Trade payables 1 1

Taotal identifiable net assets at fair value as at 26
March 08, 2023 (A}

Non - Controlling interest measured at proportionate share in -
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
(B)

Fair value of consideration (C) 26

Goodwill = (C) + (B) - (A)* =

* Amount below INR Lakhs

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired busi as 1 at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities, Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less
than its carrying amount. Goodwill has been tested for impairment based on the cash flow forecasts of the related CGU and the recoverable amounts of these CGUs
exceeded their carrying amounts,
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32 Busi Combinations {conti 1)
Cross-border merger of Groww Ine
A, Background

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 234 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions, read with National Company Law Tribunal Ryles, 2016
and Companies {Comgp 1se, Arr and Amal tons) Rules, 2016 and enabling provisions 1n the Company’s Memorandum and Anticles of Association vide order dated 28 Masch

2024, the NCLT has approved the Scheme of Amal ion (“the Scl ") for g ion of Groww Inc. USA, pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, USA
("Transferor Company™) with and mto Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited ("the Company") or (“Transferee Company") ar (BGV)

Sub to the 1 i Company has subseribed to the equity, Class A equity and preference share capital This acquisitian has lead to simplification of the shareholding structure and

reduction of shareholding tiers so that the Group can tap the efficiencies of being an Indian pany given the k applying to the Group's various businesses.

y

Further, the said merger is expected to result in the following business objectives—
- simplifyiing and unifying the holding structure of the group through an amalgamation;

- efficrent decision making by eliminating duplicate cory P | in the State of Delaware due 10 a lned holding re and simplify and eli the inter pany transacti

- econoinising and reducing in administrative, managenial and other common expenditure; and

- ereating value for various stakeholders and shareholders of the group. as a result of the above.

B. Appointed date

The Scheme was made effective from 29 March 2024 based on Form Ine-28 filed with the Registrar of Companies ("ROC") with an appointed date | April 2023,

Consequently, the Company has included the financial information of the Transferor € I in its dalone fi 1 stat with effect from appointed date (which is deemed to be the

acquisition date for purpose of Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations), to include the information of the Transferor Company. Cansequently, the figures for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2023 have
been restated from the earliest reporting period to give impact of the Scheme (refer section C below). Therefore, financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023 are not strictly comparable
with the previous year's financial statement,

C. Accounting

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Company has 1 for the amal ion in its hooks of account in accordance with *Pooling of Interests
Method" prescribed in ‘Appendix C* *Business combinations of entities under common cantrel” of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS8) 103 for Business Combinations notified under
Section 133 of the Indian Companies Act read with Ce panies (Indian Acc ing Standards) Rules, 2013

The accounting under pooling of interest method is as follows:;

1. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their cartying amounts

2. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets o liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to hanmonise accounting policies.

3. The financial information of the respective prior periads has been restated as if the business combination had occurred from the begnning of the earliest period reported in the financial
statements, irespective of the actual date of the combination.

D. Carrying Value of Assets acquired and Liabilities assumed on the acquisition date:

Groww Inc., Balance Sheet as on | April 2023

Particulars Amount

(in Rs. Lakhs)
Investinents 283 452
Cash and cash equivalents 15,754
Other financial assets 1,987
Other current assets 9
Total Assets 301202
Share capital -
Retained eanings (153)
Securities premium 287,128
Share options outstanding account 13,739
Total Equity 300,714
Trade pavables and other pavables 488
Tatal Liabilities 488

Total Egllmes and Liabilities 301,202
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E. Consideration

The consideration is based on the fair share exchange ratio of 2.2'1 as approved by the Boards of the relevant Companies (“Swap Ratio™), Le., for every one (1) common stock held o the
Transteror Company, such shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted two pomt two (2.2) equity shares of Rs. 10 per share in the Transferee Company, for every one (1) founder
comiman stock held i the Transteror Company, such shareholders of the Transe Company shall be allotted two point two (2.2) class A equity shares of Rs. 10 per share and for every one (1)
preferred stock held in the Transferor Company, such shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be allotted two pomt two (2.2) preference shares of Rs. 10 per share in the Transferee
Company. pursuan: to the merger. Accordingly-

(i) Equity Shares 20,732,089 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Ine. Equity share capital of BGV e, 68,100,095 shares held
by Growew Ine. shall stand cancelled.
(it} Class A Equity Shares 880 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc.

(1ii} Series A-1 000001 % Compulsary O rtible P! Shares (CCPS) 10,446,663 CCPS of face value of Rs 10 each shall be issued by the Company 1o the shareholders of Groww Tne,
(1) Series A-2 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 509,299 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Growaw Inc.
(v} Series A-3 0.00001% Compulsory © rtible P Shares (CCPS) 1,842,500 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Ine

{vi) Series A~4 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 2,633,200 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 cach shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc
(vii) Series B 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 10,820,404 CCPS of face value of Rs, 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the sharehalders of Groww Inc
(vaii) Series C-1 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS} 6,411,899 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc.
(ix) Series C-2 0.00001% Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 542,340 CCPS of face value of Rs 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the shareholders of Groww Inc,
(x) Series D 0.00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 4,918,507 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company 1o the shareholders of Groww Jnc.
(x1) Series E 0 00001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 6.045,171 CCPS of face value of Rs. 10 each shall be issued by the Company to the sharehalders of Groww Ine

F. Exchange differences duc to elimination between the investment made by Groww Inc. and share capntal (including securities premium} issued by the Company in the process of merger has
been adjusted with securities premium of the Company,

Particulars In the books of Amount
{INR in Inldlsl
Equity shares issued to Groww Inc BGY 6,810
Securities preminitn on Equity shares issued 1o Groww Inc. BGV 275,162
Investment in BGV Groww Ine (282.412)

Adjustny remium (440)

G. Other Equity Reconciliation

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars BGV Groww Ine Merger Total
adjustments

Other equity (before merger and ather adjustments) 279,397 300,714 - 80,111

Consideration (Refer note 32(E)) (6,485) (6,485)

Mereer and other adjustments - (275,602) (275.602)

Other equity (after merger and other adjustments

279,397 300.714 {282.087) 298.024

H. Profit Before Tax Reconciliation

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars BGVY Groww Ine Merger Total
adjustments

Profit Before Tax (before merger and other adjustments) 41,820 894 - 42,714

Merger and other adjustments - - - -

Profit Before Tax (after merger and other adjustments) 41.820 894 - 42.714

I. Exceptional item

The merger of Groww Inc. (Groww) with Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited qualify as a tax-free rearganization under Section 368(a}(1)(A) or Section 368(a)(1)D) of the US
Federal tax laws in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (hereinafter referred to as 'US Tax Laws’), subject to N various r izati q . However, the said merger is expected
to be considered taxable under Section 367 of the US Tax Laws, even if the merger otherwise qualifies as a reorganization under Section 368(a)(1)(A) or Section 36B(a)(1)(D). As per the US tax
Laws, Section 367 overwrites Section 368 and the merger is subject to a US “Qutbound™ merger Tax wherein Groww Inc. would have to recognize the gain in its assets {i.e. difference between
the fair market value of such assets and the US tax basis in such assets), which would be subject to a US tax at the rate of 21%

Hence, the company has created a estimated tax liability of INR 1,33,968 on account of the US taxes applicable on the Outbound merger. The estimated tax liability has been disclosed as an
exceptional item in the statement of profit and loss,
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33 Non controlling Interest
Setout below is summarised financial information for subsidiaries that has non-controlling interest to the group. The amount disclosed are before inter-

company elimination,

Summarised balance sheet 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ownership interest held by non controlling interest # -
Financial assets 93,132 215,398
Financial liabilities 39,685 (159,053)
Non financial assets 1,282 3,952
Non financial liabilities {59) {1,295y
Net assets 134,040 59,002
Non-controlling interest - -
Summarised statement of profit or loss 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue 6,523 125 816
Profit for the year (6,277} 7313
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (11) 28
Total comprehensive income (6,288) 7,341
|Total comprehensive income allocated to non controlling interest = 5
|Summarised statement of cash flow 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash flow from operating activities {77,738) 21,572
Cash flow from investing activities (6,792) (13.366)
Cash flow from financing activities 86,689 (7
|Net Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,159 8,199
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34

Additional information pursuant to requirement of Schedule 111 To The Companies

Consolidated Financial Statements

Act, 2013 under general instructions for preparation of

Name of the entity Net Assets, i.e., total assets Share in profit or loss Share in other Share in total
minus total liabilities comprehensive income comprehensive income
As Y of Amount As Yo of Amount As Y of Amount As % of Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
net assets profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Bl1% 205,256 129%| (104,091} -24% 10 129%)  (104.081)
Private Limited
Subsidiaries
Groww Invest Tech Private 35% 88,739 -37%) 29975 93% (37 =37% 29 738
Limited (Formely known as
Nextbillion Technology Private
Limited)
Groww IFSC Private Limited 0% 193 1% (1} -7% 3 0% 1
Groww  Asset Management 0% 16,464 4% (3,593) 31% (13) 4% {3.6006)
Limited (Formerly known as
Indiabulls Asset Management
Company Limited)
Groww  Trustee Limited 0% 41 0%, (89) 0% - 0% {80)
(Formerly known as Indiabulls
Trustee Company Limited)
Neobillion Fintech Private 1% 3,248 0% (158} 0% - 0% (158))
Limited
Groww Pay Service Private 1% 2,651 1% {939) 4% 2 1%)| {938)
Limited
Groww Serv Private Limited 0% 316 0% (148) 7% (3) 0% (151}
Billionblocks Finserv Private 0% 39 0% {n 0% - % (1
Limited
Groww AA Private Limited 0% - 0% 1 0% - 0% 1
Groww Insurance Broking 0%, 124 % 3 0%, - 0% 3
Private Limited
Groww Creditserv Technology 14% 35,141 1% 680 -4% I -1%| 682
Private Limited
Finments Tech Private Limited 0% (873) 2% (1.231) 0% - 2% (1,231}
(Fermerly know as Finvantage
Investment Adviser Private
Limited)
Subtotal 138%, 351,337 99% (79,793) 93% (37) 99%, (79,830}
Associate (Investment as per
the equity method)
Groww Creditserv Technology 0% - 1% (668) 0% - 1% (668)
Private Limited*
Subtotal 138% 351,337 100% (80,460) 93% (37) 100%: {80,497)
Adjustments arising out of -38% (97,070) (1% (85) 7| (3) %) (87)
consolidation
Less: Non-controlling interests 0% - 0% 51 0% 3 0%, 5l
Total 100%] 254,268 100%]  (80,494) 100% (40 100%]  (80,533)

* Company was associate for part of the year
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No tunds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or
in any other persons or entities. including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not received any fund from any
parties (funding party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified bv or
behalf of the Group ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any gurantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

Subsequent events

A. Pursuant to letter dated 04 April 2024, Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) approved Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (BGV) to
act as a Sponsor of Groww Mutual Fund and to acquire 100% shareholding of Groww Asset Management Limited (Groww AMC) & Groww Trustee
Limited (Groww Trustee) from Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (GIT). Subsequently, approval to amend the trust deed has been received from SEBI on
June 26. 2024,

B. In accordance with the provisions of Section 13, 61 and 64 read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution dated 28 June 2024 have approved to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company to
Rs. 120,000 divided into 112.49,75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each, 25,000 Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each; and 7,50,00,000 Preference Shares
of Rs. 10/- each.

C. Pursuant to Section 63 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company vide resolution dated July 31, 2024 has approved the issuance of bonus shares to the holders of the Equity Shares and Class A
Equity Shares of the Company as on August 08, 2024 (“Record Date™) in the ratio of 14:1 Le., 14 equity shares for every | equity share and Class A equity
share held in the Company. The Board has further approved the extension of the benefits in relation to the aforesaid bonus issuance to the holders of each of
the Series Al, Series A2, Series A3, Series A4, Series B, Series Cl, Series C2, Series D, and Series E 0.00001% CCPS of the Company, such that upon
conversion, each CCPS holder shall receive 15 equity shares each, for every 1 CCPS held by such CCPS holder in the Company. Further, the adjustments on
issue of bonus shares as aforesaid shall alaos be made to the outstanding options granted to the option holders of the Company.

As per our report of even date attached

Jor BSR& Co. LLP Jor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Fiym Registrafion Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343
e Y
. ,\’?N\/_
>\e,}t” .
ohit Alexander Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain Roshan Dave

Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. : 222513 DIN: 2483558 DIN: 05321547 Membership No. A26472
Place; Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: August 27, 2024 Date: August 27, 2024 Date: August 27, 2024 Date: August 27. 2024
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